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• povertleradlcatlon,

• a healthlerj'better nOUTlshed human family,

• reduced pressure on fragile natural resources, and

• people centered polIcies for sustamable development

..6f way to acltleve fltls
We achIeve this by undertaking, faCIIltatmg and dlssemmatmg sCientifiC research to Improve the production,

management and conservation of aquatic resources such as fish Our obJectives are

• raising and sustaining the productivIty of fisheries and aquaculture systems,
• protecting the aquatIc enVironment,

• savmg aquatic biodiverSIty,
• Improvmg policies for sustamable development of aquatic resources,

• strengthening the capacity of national programs to support sustamable development

We believe thiS work will be most successful when undertaken In partnership with national government
and nongovernment mstltutlons and with the partiCipation of the users of the research results

rae gu/(::Ilng prinCiples for our research are
• sustalnabillty,

• eqUity,
• gender role In development,

• partiCIpation,
• systems approach, and
• anticipatory research

rae values ofour work are
• excellence In achievement,

• relevance to our benefiCiaries needs
• partnerships,

• centerwlde teamwork,
• communication,

• effiCiency and fleXibility m program delivery, and

• contmual growth In our knowledge and understanding

0-hfernaflonal !Inks
ICLARM has ItS headquarters m the Phillppmes and research sites In MalawI, the Solomon Islands

Bangladesh the Canbbean and Egypt We also have outposted officers In Denmark France and Canada

In 1992, ICLARM JOined the CGIAR (Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research)
which IS under the umbrella of four co sponsors FAO (Food and Agnculture Organization),

World Bank UNDP (United Nations Development Programme) and UNEP (UN EnVIronment Programme)
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~ are pleased to present this Introduction and overview of 1996 To

better meet and reflect the growmg worldwide demands for knowledge and techno

logy to assist the management and wise use of Ilvmg aquatic resources,

ICLARM assumed a new organizational and program structure at the

start of the year Bellevmg that the content of our work pro

gram IS only part of the equation however, we have also

developed a forward looking policy that spells out how we

wish to conduct our work m partnership with many others

who share our VISion

l1vmg AquatIc Resources

Issues relatmg to living aquatic resources, especially those concerning flshenes and aquaculture

remained fJrmly on the public agenda In 1996 Indeed the theme of thiS annual report IS media

attention The two main areas of public concern are the flshenes aquaculture environment nexus and

how to make aquaculture more sustainable, productive and equitable m the dlstnbutlon of ItS benefits

Underlymg these concerns IS an awareness of the tranSition In the contnbutlon of flshenes to sustamable

food secunty ICLARM has been active In examining the Implications of thiS transition Fish, once a

cheap source of protein for many of the world s poor, has appreCiated In real pnce, world fish stocks

are under heavy pressure at current explOitation levels, and aquaculture while making great gams m

production, tends to Yield direct benefits primarily to higher Income groups unless speCifiC technology

interventions can ensure greater eqUity Growing pressure on the environment Including the aquatic

envJronment further limits the productive capaCity of natural resources such as water and biodiverSity

The World Conservation Congress of the World Conservation Unron (IUCN) held a workshop

on fisheries and conservation draWing for the first time many mamstream flshenes participants Into a

dialogue on conservation Issues and COinCiding With the controversial inclUSion of several commerCial

fish species on the IUCN s Red Lists The IUCN Invited ICLARM to convene a workshop session

on fisheries It predicted a major new phase of flshenes management action and greater use of the

precautionary approach m management deCISions The poliCy and technical meetmgs of the International

Convention on BiologICal DiverSity Included workshops on aquatic resources and aquatic biodiverSity

many of which were attended or co organrzed by ICLARM staff

-



Sustainable aquaculture received attention from experts and the public alike ICLARM IS concerned

about how poor people can share In the promised benefits either as producers or consumers Our

research interventions are targeted to effiCient and ecologically sustainable systems based on effective

affordable and available Inputs for small scale producers (e g Integrated aquaculture agriculture giant

clam farming), and to more affordable products (e g Improved breeds of tilapla) for the consumer In

all cases, ICLARM s work focuses on environmentally friendly systems those systems which tend not

to cause major environmental problems or which even Improve the environment

Top Performers

In pursuit of ICLARM s miSSion to Improve the well being of poor people In developing countries

we are pleased to note several outstanding achievements by ICLARM staff, staff teams and partners In

1996 Those we would espeCially like to highlight are

The team that produced FlshBase 96, the second annual update of thiS CD ROM Drs Rarner

Froese Danrel Pauly and all those working on and contrlbutrng to FlshBase In ICLARM and In over

100 partner agencies around the world ThiS knowledge base continues to grow In content and deSign

and IS becoming the world s foremost repository of the eXisting knowledge on fish Its usefulness IS

expected to Increase further In 1 997 as It becomes a core element of a major fisheries resources and

aquatic biodiversity management training initiative In African, Caribbean and PaCifiC countries, which IS

supported by the European Unron and Implemented through ICLARM and ItS regional partners

Another global knowledge base IS our second noteworthy achievement The ReefBase team, led by

Dr John McManus and JOined by many collaborators Interested rn reefs, produced and released the

ReefBase CD ROM at the 8th International Coral Reefs Symposium In Panama In June The database

already contains information on over 6 000 reefs, and ItS content will expand over the next few years

as better coverage of existing reef information IS achieved It IS becoming a source of crltlca/lnformatlon

for deCISion makers concerned With managing reefs on which millions of people depend

Drs Danrel Pauly and Purwlto Martosubroto (now of FAO, formerly of the Directorate General of

Fisheries, Mlnrstry of Agriculture, IndoneSia) editors, and the chapter authors of the book Baseline

Studies In BiodiverSity the Fish Resources of Western IndoneSia have produced a Significant SCientific

work hlghllghtrng the characteristics of the fisheries resources of IndoneSia and developing new, biodiverSity

based perspectives on them from survey data collected before and after the development of these

fisheries

Drs Robert Pomeroy, Richard Pollnac (University of Rhode Island, USA) and Ms Brenda Katon

reViewed communrty based coastal resource management prOjects In the PhiliPPines ThiS review gives

Important InSights rnto the success rates of such projects and the factors that underpin their progress It

IS a very necessary review as the world moves to more community based actiVities In natural resource

management

ICLARM released ItS partnership polrcy a first for ICLARM and for a CGIAR center Our

polrcy carefully developed by the staff and the Board over the last two years, lays out the objectives

prinCiples and strategies for partnership Dr Modadugu V Gupta, Director of International Relations

was responSible for gUiding the final stages of thiS Important poliCy

Completing Its work In August 1996 the Fisheries Sector Program (FSP) training team produced

a series of field based training courses and packages of training materials By studying a number of bays

In the Philippines thiS team of speCialists led by Geronimo Silvestre and Len Garces developed and

refined the methods which they eventually Integrated Into trarnlng courses and materials
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Anthony Hart and Dr Johann Bell of the ICLARM Coastal Aquaculture Centre presented a paper

on reseeding giant clams to the wild at the 2 nd World Fisheries Congress In Brisbane Thb paper

r proposed that a reseeding program would only be viable If coupled with villa~e husbandry

of clams Protection of young clams IS only possible wlthlr managed grow out

but IS essential for the survival o~ sufficient numbers In the early stages of reseeding

The Publications Unit of ICLARM has Improved effiCiency and service delivery

The Unit IS clearing up a backlog of publications and establishing new prOject

management systems

Consultative Group on lnternatJonal

Aqrlculrural Research

As part of the renewal process of the CGIAR, which commenced In 1994 and concluded In

1996 we saw the establishment of new partnership committees the Private Sector Committee and

the Non Governmental Organizations (NGO) Commltke Members of both committees vIsited

ICLARM for diSCUSSions In 1996 The NGO Committee met with a group of our PhiliPPine NGO

collaborators to learn more about the research partnerships and prOjects In which we collaborate

The CGIAR also Introduced a new funding formula at the Mid Term Meeting (MTM) held In

Jakarta In May ThiS formula IS deSigned to allocate the World Bank s contribution to the centers

(approximately 15% of total CGIAR funding) In relation to the funds raised from other dono s, as

well as to build up some reserves for the Bank to meet serious funding shortfalls over the next few years

The new system also puts the onus on the centers to estl mate their own Incomes as the baSIS for the

Bank s contribution ThiS necessitates more direct contact With all donors, some of whom had previously

notified their contribution through the World Bank or the Finance Committee of the CGIAR

The CGIAR MTM was also a landmark for ICLARM as we announced, and gamed CGIAR

support for, the Board s deCISion to accept the offer of the Government of Egypt to use the research

fadltles at Abbassa The Board determined that the site would be used for two main functions first as

a hub for ICLARM s collaborative research and training dctlvltles In Sub Saharan Africa and the West

ASia/North Afnca region addreSSing food security, poliCY and human resource Issues through collaborative

research With partners In tne region, and also as a site for selected upstream region and global research

relating to tOPICS such as bIOlogical diverSity, natural resource management, genetic conservation, mOnitoring

and Improvement, health and nutrition of aquatic species and poliCy Issues relating to fisheries, aquaculture

and other aquatic resource uses

DUring 1996 all CGIAR centers were required to begin developing their medium term plans

(MTP) to cover the period 1998 2000 For ICLARM thiS was our second MTP as a member of

the CGIAR We began by putting together a diSCUSSion paper outlining our plans ThiS paper was

circulated to over 400 stakeholders In mid 1996 We received detailed written responses from about

120 people and organizations In September, an 11 person SCientific adVisory panel was convened

for three days to diSCUSS the paper and the responses and to give their own views on our research

directions The Board s Program Committee and then the full Board, deliberated on the reports and

guided staff and management In compiling a final draft of the plan for consideration by the CGIAR In

early 1997
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For ICLARM this planning phase provided an Ideal opportunity to consult widely on our future

research programs

ICLARM faces ItS next full External Program and Management Review rn late 1998/early 1999

In preparation for this CGIAR managed review we continued our program of rnternally commissioned

external reviews with a full review of the Corporate Services DIvIsion rn April 1996 This review

provided the Board and management with valuable assistance rn Improvrng the delivery of efficient

effective and well targeted support services

The CGIAR celebrated Its 25th Anniversary rn 1996 with a special day durrng International

Center sWeek CICW) In Washington In October Several founders and former chairs of the CGIAR

Jorned the celebration The centers presented their latest frndrngs durrng ICW 96, ICLARM made

Its presentation rn the ASian regional session

Donor RelatlOns

Many government donors contrnued to experience frnanclal constraints rn 1996 as their national

governments gave less prrorlty to overseas development assistance This affected their capacity to

provide additional aSSIStance to CGIAR centers ICLARM marntarned an active program of donor

contacts and welcomed VISitS from many donor representatives Since the Technrcal Advisory Committee

held ItS March meetrng at our partner rnstltute, the International Institute for Rice Research at Los

Banos, and because the MTM took place rn the ASian region (Indonesia), ICLARM enjoyed many

follow on VISitS from donors

ICLARM welcomed new prOject donors In 1996 when the Swedish International Development

Cooperation Agency (SIDA) and the MacArthur Foundation of the USA became ItS supporters

Legal Stanchng

In January 1996 ICLARM welcomed Australia s accesSion to our International Agreement

signed by the gove nments of the Phrllpplnes Denmark, MalawI and Vietnam rn 1993

In October we were delighted when the Senate of the Government of the Phrllpplnes passed

Senate Resolution No 62 slgnalrng the entry Into force of the headquarters agreement between the

Government and ICLARM Followrng the passing of this resolution, ICLARM moved to secure all the

necessary formal arrangements to establish a range of Immunrtles and prrvileges as specified In the

headquarters agreement These arrangements are expected to be completed by mid 1997

Management

The 1996 operatrng expenses of ICLARM were US$ 9 231 million an Increase of 22% over

the final 1995 figure For revenues unrestricted core accounted for 62% ($ 5 762 million) of total

revenues although $1 268 of thiS was still receivable at the end of 1 996 Funds were prOVided by

42 donor sources 14 of which were unrestrrcted core donors

As of December 1996 ICLARM employed a total staff of 227 consisting of 152 In the

Phrllpplnes 51 at the Coastal Aquaculture Centre In the Solomon Islands, 8 rn MalawI, 14 In

Bangladesh and one each In France and Denmark Of these staff 27 were internationally recruited and

the remainder were recruited locally or regionally at the varrous ICLARM sites

ICLARM
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A new organizational structure

In January 1996, ICLARM Introduced a new program and organizational structure developed

through consultation with staff In 1995 and approved by the Board (see diagram on page 69)

New executive positions were created, namely a Deputy Director General (Programs), a Director of

International Relations and an External Relations Officer These POSitions, along With the new POSition

of Associate Director General (Corporate Services), were filled dUring 1996 by

Dr Peter Gardiner, Deputy Director General (Programs), formerly of the

International Livestock Research Institute,

Dr Modadugu V Gupta, International Relations Officer and formerly officer

In charge of ICLARM s Bangladesh office,

Mrs Susan Bonetto, Associate Director General (Corporate Services), formerly

a management consultant from the United States of America, and

Dr Marian Fuchs Carsch (consultant), External Relations Officer, formerly of

the International Irrigation Management Institute

A program planning meeting was held In February to provide more detail to the program structure

Further development of these new programs and the linkages among them continued throughout the

year and IS expected to continue under the new Medium Term Plan

Search for a headquarters site

DUring 1996, ICLARM continued negotiations With the Sublc Bay Metropolttan AuthOrity

(SBMA) for a sUitable headquarters site at Subic Bay, 1 20 km west of Manila By mid year the

outlook was promising A consultancy team from Denmark, the United Kingdom and FAa undertook

an initial concept design miSSion With funds generously provided by Danish International Development

Assistance (DANIDA) The team vIsited ICLARM, undertook a needs assessment and then Inspected

a potential site In Sublc Bay The Board of Trustees met at Sublc Bay In September and held

discussions With the chair of the SBMA A Letter of Intent was submitted to the chair of the

SBMA

Despite this preparation, no final agreement With the SBMA had been reached by the end of the

year A sUitable headquarters location continues to be one of ICLARM s greatest needs

Outreach Sltes

~

ICLARM With CGIAR support decided to take up the Egyptian Government s offer to use the

Abbassa factllty Negotiations on the host country agreement were close to a conclUSion by the end of

the year In anticipation of a favorable outcome planning for refurbishment of the faCIlity began In mid

1996 It was carned out by Mr Tony Pickett an Australian agricultural consultant With considerable

experience In development prOjects In Egypt

Senior international staff were recruited for the POSitions of Deputy Drrector General (Africa and

West ASia) Factlltles Manager and Principal SCientist All staff were expected to take up therr

positions In early 1997

-



The Solomon Islands

In 1996 the CAC commenced new research Into the rearrng of tropical sea cucumbers with

funding from the Australian Centre for International Agrrcultural Research (ACIAR) and expanded

Its base Infrastructure to accommodate the new prOject and staff The CAC also welcomed to Its site

a prOject of the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) for rearrng green snarls

Bangladesh

Work continued on small scale aquaculture In farming systems with funding from the US Agency

for International Development (USAID) Studies on co management of Inland water bodies entered

a new phase under funding by the Ford Foundation Both prOjects Involved many national partners

among NGOs and government agencies engaged In research, management and extension services

MalawI

Research on small scale Integrated aquaculture agrrculture continued In MalawI ICLARM signed

a new five year host country agreement with the Government of MalawI DIScussions were held with

government offiCials on the possible broadening of ICLARM s work In MalawI to encompass fisheries

co management studies on the flsherres of the large lakes

Governance

ICLARM

Director General

Meryl J Wrillams
Board Chair

John L Drllon

The Board of Trustees conducted two successful Board meetings and oversaw a full set of

accompanYing committee meetings The Board continued to monitor closely the growth of ICLARM

and to maintain close linkages with CGIAR developments It sought to evaluate ItS own progress and

procedures New members were Inducted Into Board and CGIAR procedures Efforts were made at

each meeting to prOVide opportunities for Board members to get acquainted with ICLARM staff

Finally we would like to draw your attention to the media coverage and to ICLARM s research

highlights featured In thiS report These have been selected to give a flavor of the mrlleu within which

ICLARM operates and to Impart something of the urgent need for the products of ICLARM s work

Carrbbean

In 1996, ICLARM commenced two prOjects In the Caribbean, both studying the Impact of

marrne protected areas One IS being conducted with the Unrverslty of the West Indies In Jamaica

and funded by the Inter Amerrcan Development Bank The other IS being conducted In the Brrtlsh

Virgin Islands In association with the Department of Natural Resources and funded by the Department

for International Development (DFID) of the United Kingdom Both prOjects are managed by Dr

John Munro

-



RESEARCH

HIGHLIGHTS

ANNUAL REPORT 1996 -



SClVlng BlOdlVeYSlty ChClYClcteY1Z1ng TI1ClPICl GenetIc Resouyces

rue Importance of conserving the bIOlogical diver

slty and genetic resources of plants and animals on which

humans depend for food and other needs IS clear AI

though It IS natural for new species to evolve and others to

die out, overexploJtatlon and widespread destruction of habl

tats as a result of the burgeoning human population and Its

consumption habits have qUickened the pace of species

loss even as the consequences of It become more dire

In this context aquatic resources have been relatively

neglected Fish and fish products have made significant contributions to food and employment all over

the world yet most efforts to preserve biodiversity have focused on terrestrial species and ecosystems

Currently over 5 000 species of finfish are used by humans Several hundred other types of aquatic

organisms are exploited and many more perhaps thousands have as yet undiscovered uses

Unfortunately many fish species are vulnerable to extinction especially freshwater species Seeing In

this situation both a problem and an opportunity the World Conservation Union CIUCN) Invited

ICLARM to become a major partner In the global assessment of the status of all freshwater fish

species In order to promote their conservation and sustainable use

Aquaculture IS gaining attention for ItS potential to meet some of the world s Increasing

food requirements The genetic resources avadable for aquaculture and fisheries are mostly to be

found In the wdd or near wdd populations Domestication for aquaculture IS centuries behind crop

and livestock breeding There remains a wide array of aquatic species to be charactenzed for

evaluation of their potential for aquaculture Among finfish, the tdaplas CAf(Jcan fish of the

famdy Cchlldae) are of great Interest for aquaculture around the world Tdaplas have an enormous

potential for Increasing the supply of fish from ,nland fisheries and fish farming In five ASian countries

the production of tdaplas from aquaculture was over half a mdl,on tonnes In 1994 It IS therefore Vital

to characterIZe tdapla genetic resources on farms and In the wdd for their future conservation and

use

Fisheries and aquaculture can pose a threat to fish genetic resources and aquatic habitats through

overexploltatlon destructive fishing methods spreading disease destruction of habitats and genetic

changes by Inbreeding Maintaining aquatic genetic diversity IS crUCial for ensuring the sustalnabdlty of

the natural and manmade systems that supply human needs for food fish The Ghanaian Institute of

Aquatic Biology (recently renamed the Water Resources Research Institute) and the

Zoologlsches Instltut und Zoologlsches Museum (ZIM) of Hamburg University lolned

ICLARM In launching a collaborative proJect In 1991 to characterize the genetic resources

of tdapla In Ghana Natural tdapla genetic resources are restricted to Africa, but the main aquaculture

Industries are on other continents mainly ASia and the Americas The aim of thiS prOject was not only

to assist Ghana but also to deVise and test methods for tdapla characterization In general It was

recognized that the methods for such characterization must be affordable and usable both In the field

and In the laboratories of the tropical and subtropICal developing countries The study used 10

different species of tdapla from wdd populations In Ghanaian rivers and lakes To broaden comparISons

species not Indigenous to Ghana were also taken from other locations- ICLARM
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This exercise culminated In 1996 with the publication of a manual entitled A BIochemical

Laboratory Manual for Species Characterization of Some T.lapllne Fishes The manual

describes detailed procedures for wide application In bochemlcal systematics, with approaches

borrowed from protein chemists The manual describes detailed serological and electrophoretic methods

developed through the prOject These methods emphasize non lethal sampling protocols so that fish

can be characterized for conservation and for use In breeding programs The diagnostic test results

presented In the manual provide reference data for tilaplas but It IS expected that these methods can

be successfully appl[ed to other fish groups as well

Irreversible biodiversity loss will continue unless there IS wider public awareness of ItS consequences

and more support for action to stop [t The efforts of 6Clentlsts and other committed individuals IS not

enough It IS human nature either to fear or Ignore things that are not understood, and part of the

problem raising support for biodiversity conservation IS the lack of knowledge about the diverSity of

liVing organisms, their Importance for humankind, their ecological functions, and how endangered they

are Much of the planet s biodiversity may disappear before we even recognize ItS

Importance ICLARM IS helping to close thiS knowledge gap and to raise awareness on

a broader scale of how valuable natural aquatic resources really are

ReefBase Harnessmg lnfcrmatlon Technology
to Preserve Our Coral Reefs

A great part of the coral reef resources In the world are In danger of destruction due

to over explOItation, degradation of the habitat and, pOSSibly, changes In global climate

conditions A survey by the International Union for the Conservation of Nature concluded that

coral reefs In 93 countries have been damaged or destroyed In the Phillpp[nes alone fisheries loss

due to reef degradation amounts to mill[ons of dollars a year directly affecting thousands of Jobs and

[ndlrectly affecting family members dependent on them On a global scale the loss In fisheries Income

may reach billions of aollars a year and affect millions of people

Few figures are available to Indicate the sustainable Yields that might be extracted for different reef

types, current and potential yields of different reef species how yields are affected by declining reef

health and loss of productive capacity and the value of non extractive uses of reefs such as tourism

SophistICated methods to quantify the deterioration of coral reefs have been initiated In some areas,

while hardly any assessment or monitoring actiVities eXist In other areas Information from these

actiVities IS usually published In primary sClentlf[c literature and may not be readdy understood by a

non technical reader A larger body of information has been compded In technical reports which are

generally for limited dlstrlbut[on ThiS makes It extremely difficult for the people tasked With managing

coral reefs to obtain the information needed for good management even when comprehenSive Informat[on

eXists

Several initiatives are underway to monitor the status of and threats to reefs at the global regional

and national levels but little progress has been made In database systems that will ensure broad

transferabd[ty of data and interpretation of results The need for such a tool IS becoming Increasingly

urgent If appropriate management IS to be Introduced on a worldWide scale before the health and

productivity of reef systems decline to IrreverSible levels

-



ReefBase IS an effort to gather the available knowledge about coral reefs Into one

information repository This database was created for resource managers In government and private

institutions students sCientists academiCians divers and other coral reef enthusiasts The information

In ReefBase IS Intended to amve at assessments and summaries about coral reefs worldwide and to

facrlltate Informed decIsions regarding coral reef use and management After two and a half years of

development with support from the European Commission, the Government of the Netherlands and

the US Agency for International Development ReefBase was officially released In June 1996 It has

subsequently been presented at a number of International forums throughout the world ReefBase IS

the official database of the Global Coral Reef MonitOring Network and directly addresses Priority

actions of the International Coral Reef Initiative now endorsed by 75 governments

The Information In ReefBase IS gathered from published literature as well as conference proceedings,

technical reports news artlcb theses and manuscripts contributed by institutions and research groups

Involved In the study of coral reefs Visual features such as aerial, underwater and land based photographs

and satellite Images help create a more comprehenSive and user friendly database Two mapping

systems, WlnMap and ReefMap, are also Included In ReefBase ReefMap displays standard format

maps of major reef systems prepared by the World Conservation MonitOring Centre, whde WlnMap

provides geographiC displays of data In ReefBase

In August 1996, ReefBase went on line With ItS own web page containing information

on both the ReefBase prOject as well as ItS CD ROM package The web page Includes a

bibliography of over 6 000 references and a register of 6 500 coral reefs around the world Within

a few months, some 50 other web sites had either made reference or established direct links to

ReefBase Thanks to ReefBase thousands of people Will have access to a lot of user friendly data and

information about our endangered coral reefs ICLARM continues to budd up the information base

and refine ItS components ReefBase IS a remarkable contribution to the management of marine resources

and made ItS Inaugural appearance to Wide acclaim In anticipation of the International Year of the Reef

1997

Makmg an Old Idea New lntegratecl Farmmg Systems

It IS becoming clear that monoculture and high Input farming have some harmful Side effects Not

only have there been undeSirable ecological consequences but many serious SOCioeconomiC problems

have emerged for people dependent on farming espeCially small scale and marginal farmers These

fadures pOint to the need to deSign farming systems to fit the local enVironments, rather than systems

that try to make the environment SUit technology that has been developed somewhere else

One approach SUited to a range of complex and resource poor farming systems IS to develop

Integrated farming systems that are adapted to local conditions, have Input from the local district or

farm minimiZe the use of expensive purchased Inputs and maXimize the farm s Input output relationship

by recycling natural resources Not only does It look as though such systems may prove to be qUite

productive (,n total) and environmentally friendly, but also that they may help small scale farms

become economically Viable and more low risk ThiS would help alleViate the socral stresses assoCiated

With Increasing rural poverty and pressure on urban areas In developing countries

- IClARM
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The coral reefs of the warm tropical waters of the South PaCIfiC are home to the giant clams the

world s largest bivalve molluscs Giant clams have been used throughout the PaCifiC region since

ancient times and remain a valuable product Their meat IS popular for sashlml and other ASian

delicaCies They can be stocked live In restaurants for freshness and customer appeal Their shells can

be used for utensils ornaments and even Jewelry The iridescent colOring and intricate shell patterns

make giant clams an interesting aquarium Item Unfortunately overflshlng, poaching and habtat

destruction have threatened the stocks of giant clams In the PaCifiC ThiS IS bad news for coastal

dwellers around the PaCifiC region because It deprives them of food and potential Income

Compared to standard monocrop farming, Integrated systems promise long term sustalnabillty and

efficiency for small farmers ICLARM IS taking steps to descnbe fully and to quantify

farming systems to understand the interrelationships, how they work and how they can be

Improved Integrated farming has been practiced for centuries In many countries but has not had

sufficient Impetus to evolve and spread Even though organized research In this field IS fairly recent

the underlYing ideas are already being disseminated through NARS NGOs and national extension

services For example CARE has a prOject that has taken the knowledge and practice of mtegrated

farming to over 1 000 farmers In Bangladesh

IAASP studied four Philippine small holder rice farms from 1994 to 1995 to develop a detailed

model for monitoring and evaluating the performance of a small farm The study compares the

ecological sustalnabllity of four nce based farming systems, including monoculture sys

tems and highly diversified and Integrated aquaculture agriculture farms Resource flows In

an Integrated fish rice, plant and animal system are identified with the help of the farmers themselves

ThiS IS then tied up with a quantitative system based on ECOPATH a software deSigned at ICLARM

for modeling and evaluating ecosystems The aim IS to develop a quantitative approach to developing

an ecologICally sound and sustainable aquaculture agriculture system

The ICLARM study IS based on regular VISitS to each farm, checking the farmer s records and sub

sampling bomaterlals for nitrogen analysIs The data on Inputs, outputs and recycled farm by prod

ucts form the baSIS for steady state nitrogen flow models of each farm These data are analyzed

through the ECOPATH software to compare diverSity nutrient cycling, and throughput ThiS IS done

In conjunction With conventional assessment indicators like productiVity effiCiency net Income and

returns to labor In addition, the ecological performance IS evaluated through goal functions like

ascendancy, overhead exergy and structural exergy for ecosystem development Thus, the project

draws on tools and techniques developed Within disciplines as disparate as farmer partici

patory research, agroecologlcal analySIS and aquatic ecosystems modeling, and relies on

a coherent framework for a quantitative evaluation of the productive and ecological

performance of an Integrated farming system

Admittedly thiS IS only a preliminary list of quantitative performance Indicators and an analytical

framework to aSSISt In the deSign and operatlonallzatlon of a healthy and sustainable aquaculture

agriculture endeavor at the rural community level But It has a strong potential as an assessment tool

and as a baSIS for developing systems that optimize the management of natural resources while

Improving the lives of millions of farmers In developing countries where a large percentage of the

population still live In rural areas and depend heavily on the farm economy

Beautrful, DehclOUs, Sustamable Cultlvatmq Gletnt Clams
m the South PaCIfic
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In keeping with ICLARM s mission to enhance the well being of poor people In developing

countries, the Coastal Aquaculture Centre (CAC) In the Solomon Islands has been working to

Improve the productivity of cor,,1 reef fisheries, focusing on giant clams, pearl oysters and

sea cucumber The CAC s research on giant clams centers around developing

simple, profitable methods for farming that can be practiced by coastal villag

ers, and on deVISing responsible and practical ways of re establishing wild

stocks Unlike many research centers, the CAe extends Its work beyond the biotechnlcal

aspects of farming systems Into the commercial sphere

The priOrities In 1996 were to reproduce brightly colored speCimens of the smaller

giant clam species Mantle color IS one of the principal determinants of price Within the aquarium

trade and It appears to be an inherited trait Three types of seed giant clams were harvested from

the CAC s land based nursery nurtured through the larval stage at a local aquaculture farm then sold

to village farmers

Meanwhile, ICLARM carned out experiments on growth rates and on the effects of adding

nitrogen to the production tanks Research also examined the vlabdlty of village based farming of giant

clams In the Solomon Islands With support from the European Union s STABEX program the

number of giant clam farmers doubled from 26 to 52 The new farms will prOVide suffiCient clams to

pdot test export markets on a more commercial scale Early results indicate that these farms could

supply 500 kg of clams per week even In thiS early stage of their development The weekly supply

IS being monitored and IS expected to double over the next year

The increasing number of clam farmers In the Solomon Islands and the commercial scale of thell

actiVities have prOVided an opportunity to study variations In growth and survival of giant clams across

a broad range of sites Five species of giant clams are being put through large scale grow

out expenments With the active partiCipation of the farmers and support from the Austra

Ilan Centre for International Agncultural Research

The time needed for clams to reach optimum size for the aquarium market was between seven and

22 months, depending on the species The slower growing species tend to fetch conSiderably higher

prices because of their spectacular colors At thiS stage, however, the data indICate that It IS

pOSSible to grow three species profitably at Village sites

On behalf of Village farmers the CAC sold 20 000 giant rlams to the aquarium market In 1996

In preparation for marketing increasing quantities of clams In ASia, ICLARM experimented With

methods for transporting the clams dry In order to reduce freight costs Early tests revealed that one

species packed In oxygen at 24°C for 16 hours had a 100% survival rate one week after unpack

Ing

To sustain the benefits of giant clam farming and to counteract the effects of past overexploltatlon,

the CAC IS developing methods for restocking clams In the wdd The local farmers help In thiS effort

by setting aSide a certain number of clams from each cultivated group These are protected In their

cages for two or three years and then placed onto coral reefs

The CAC continues to generate promising results from ItS experiments on giant clam cultivation

and marketing and the growing numbers of giant clam farmers In the region Indicate that word of the

potential for sustainable livelihood has spread

- ICLARM
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How to Make Commufllty-Basecl Resource Management Work
DraWlng lessons from the Past

People who live near and depend on a natural resource for their livelihood are most

intimately concerned with the ability of that resource to continue providing them with a

means of survival

This may frustrate or alienate small or remote communities who feel that the governmerl't

does not take a serious enough mterest m their needs and concerns Even when the government would

like to get Involved, fmanclal constramts or other priOrities often get m the way So why not let the

local reSidents themselves take over some of the management responsibility7 With adequate training

and support, they can be effective partners for local and national governments m lookmg after the

natural resource base with an eye to long term sustamability

By the early 1980s, for both practical and psychological reasons, the need to decentralize and

devolve responsibilIty for natural resources management to local governments and commUnities began

to gam recognition among development practitioners and policy makers m the Philippines They also

saw the value of mtenslfYlng the participation of resource users In declslonmakmg and prOject Imple

mentation Consequently, between 1984 and 1994, over 100 projects were deSigned by govern

ment and non government organrzatlons, relymg on local as well as foreign funds to Introduce commu

nrty based coastal resource management (CBCRM) These prOjects targeted a range of resources

from fisheries to mangroves to coral reefs

Because CBCRM was a relatively new approach, many prOject planners had to feel their way

through uncharted territory Even though commuhlty based management IS no longer so new, how can

poliCY makers and prOject planners make sure they do not Simply fumble through the same unknown

landscape7 By looking at what these prOjects have accomplished or failed to accomplish and learning

from their experiences about the variables and conditions condUCive to successful planning and Imple

mentatron of CBCRM Projects often conclude With an evaluation of their Impact, and there IS

documentation of conclUSions concernmg methods of particIpation, deCISion making or resource man

agement Yet each prOject Will generate lessons of only limited applicability elsewhere, because each

site and each situation has unique characteristics Clearly, the way to derive the greatest benefit from

thell experiences IS to compare them to each other to look for mutually remforcmg findings, or to

contrast differing outcomes to understand why certam approaches work m some places better than

others Unfortunately, such comparative Impact evaluations have never been performed

In 1996 an IClARM research team concluded ItS study of nine eBeRM proJects

and their Impact USing a standardized methodology, the team reviewed and assessed the

performance of completed eBeRM prOjects In order to help Improve planning and

Implementation processes for future prOjects The research team selected a number of sites

located m the Central Vlsayas and Palawan as these were part of a major upcoming CBCRM effort,

funded by USAID, which might benefit from the results of the study In each region, prOjects that had

been more successful were chosen along With less successful ones m order to Identify the factors and

conditions that may contribute to varYing levels of success as well as to the long term sustainability of

each prOject S Impacts An Important feature of the study IS that It applied a rigorously developed

quantitative methodology to the comparisons -



Although the study was by no means an exhaustive evaluation of CBCRM prOjects In the Philip

pines having examined only a fraction of the prOjects Implemented over the last 10 years It did Yield

a number of Important lessons that can be of use to development practitioners as they prepare and

execute new prOjects In the future One finding of the study IS that early and continuous participation

of prOject beneficiaries (e g flsherfolk) In prOject planning and ImplementatIOn tends to result In more

positive evaluation of Impacts Similarly pre eXisting cultural attitudes that favor collective action most

often Yielded perceptions of positive change as a consequence of the prOject Projects with limited

time or resources may try to take short cuts In the arduous process of mobilizing people for collective

action, but this study shows that committed capacity bUilding efforts payoff In that they

enhance the people s sense of empowerment and confidence In their ability to affect therr

own future

The study also found that government aSSIStance through supportive legIslation, fund

Ing and reliable enforcement IS cfltlcal The people cannot do It alone l One especially Interest

Ing finding indicates that most fishers enJoy their occupation and would prefer not to change to

another Job even when pressure on resources leads to diminishing household Income Considering

that one of the most common thrusts of development aSSIStance In recent years has been to find

alternative employment for fishers In stressed areas this study suggests that a more effective and locally

acceptable approach may be to seek supplementary Income generating actiVities Instead

The results of this Impact evaluation study can be of use to donors, development

practitioners, and local as well as national policy makers Since they all share the goal of

promoting an Improved quality of life for coastal commUnities while protecting natural resources for

future generations, learning lessons from each other s experience can be a valuable step toward

preparing more effective initiatives In the future

Poohl1g Our Resources Networkl11q for People,
the El1V1rol1mel1t C111d SClel1trfIc Progress

Aquatic resources provide a very substantial proportion of the food requirements of the world

population Fish the world s fifth most Important agricultural commodity, accounts for 7 5% of

world food production Unfortunately, current rates of explottatlon may be outpacing the ability of

natural resources to regenerate themselves, to the detriment of future generations of humans who

depend on them And pressures will only Increase With our expanding population

What aquatIc resources require IS a careful husbandrng of the current stocks and sClen

tlflc farming to expand them Of course thiS IS not as Simple as It sounds It requrres a great deal

of conscIous planning and research Necessary steps Include accounting of current stocks, studies on

their genetic composition development of methods for effiCient breeding and reproduction, creation

of productive farming systems, maintenance of biodiverSity protection of therr deteriorating enVIron

ments, and further efforts to boost awareness among poliCY makers on what they can do to help

These efforts demand not only financial resO\lrces but also trained manpower both of which are In

short supply In developing countries

ICLARM IS Involved In the whole range of these actiVities In many cases It IS not the primary

doer As well as performrng primary research, ICLARM also acts as a catalyst In

Initiating, promoting and brrnglng together the results of work being done In thiS /reid

around the globe, all toward Its vIsion of Improving the well being and livelihood of present and

future generations of poor people In developing countries

- ICLARM
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ICLARM s program on International Partnerships and Networks IS a major Instrument of this work

ICLARM believes that to be successful ItS work must be undertaken In partnership with national

government and non government institutions calling upon the best SCientifiC resources available and

With the participation of resource users and benefiCiaries All prOjects undertaken by ICLARM are In

collaboration With national systems, advanced sCientific institutions indiVidual SCientists and farmers/

fishers To make ItS prOjects relevant on a larger scale ICLARM IS formalIZIng, strengthening and

Widening the system of partnerships for all ItS prOjects One such partnership IS the International

Network on Genetics In Aquaculture (INGA) which has 13 member countries Bangladesh, China

Cote d Ivolre Egypt FIJI Ghana India IndoneSia Mala~1 MalaYSia Philippines Thailand and

Vietnam

Though aquaculture IS being widely practiced In the developing world, there has been little

concerted effort towards the application of SCientific prinCiples of genetics and husbandry Recent

studies on salmon, trout and Nile tilapla have clearly demonstrated the potential for achieVing sub

stantlal gains In aquaculture production through the application of quantitative genetics International

sCientific collaboration can enable developing countries to enhance the productiVity and profitability

of aquaculture

In 1996 INGA focused on exchange of methods and matenals, on the formulation of

collaborative research proJects, on training of personnel, and on diSSemination of Infor

mation In all these areas, ICLARM coordinates and aSSISts In the activities of INGA

and ItS members For example, germplasm developed In the Philippines under the GIFT proJect has

been made available to Bangladesh, China IndoneSia, Thailand and Vietnam ICLARM IS helping to

formulate protocols and quarantine procedures for the transfer of germplasm and to assist member

countries In getting resources for training In breeding and farmlllg of fish Several Institutions have

received help In preparing pro/ects and proposals for research and extension services ICLARM

encourages organizations to partiCipate and share information

The Importance of networking lies In the old adage two heads are better than one l It promotes

collaborative solutions rather than Isolated successes Networking makes research cheaper and more

effiCient by eliminating duplication It also makes results more acceSSible to those who need It and can

make use of It Networking gives a Wider focus to speCIfiC research and experimentation by looking at

ItS relevance under different conditions It IS not enough, for example, to be able to farm tilapla which

grow faster and bigger Can thiS be done Without expensive Inputs so that It IS feaSible for poor

farmers to adopt and will It prOVide fish which IS affordable for a large number of consumers In the

developing countries? What are the ecological consequences? Wril It have a negative Impact on

biodiversity? Can the surrounding habitats be protected from damage? For example shrimp aquacul

ture In many parts of ASia IS being practiced In a slash and burn manner and IS seriously damaging the

surrounding areas (A qUick profit IS always attractive when the long term costs are borne by someone

else l ) Exchange of information can ensure that at least the same mistake IS not repeated Thus,

networking IS expected to promote an awareness of the overall picture and Improve

planning and governance at the local, national and regional levels As a cornerstone of

ICLARM s operating philosophy networking and partnerships have a bright future In natural re
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Researfh partners from ASia and Africa on a
,VISit to tllapla culture site In the Philippines
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Deputy Prime MInister and Minister of Agriculture
and Land Reclamation of the Government of Egypt
opening the Third INGA Steenng Committee In
COiro Egypt

In early 1996, ICLARM created an International Relations arm

to help forge Imkages With NARS from developmg countries and to coordmate the

International mformatlon and research networks m which ICLARM IS mvolved In addition,

ItS Board of Trustees has approved ICLARM s Partnership PoliCy m Research and Related

ActiVities to speCify the principles and strategies for partnerships

One of ICLARM s networking activities mvolves coordmating the International Network

on Genetics m Aquaculture (INGA) INGA-whlch seeks to Improve aquaculture

production through genetics research-currently has 13 member countries from ASia PaCifiC

and Africa The network has been actively aSSISting ItS members through activities mcludmg

trammg national SCientists In genetics, developing natlonalbreedmg programs, coordlnatmg

fish germplasm transfer among member countries for research, promotmg the exchange of

information, particularly through the publication of an INGA newsletter In Naga the

ICLARM Quarterly and, formulation of regional research programs such as the genetic

Improvement of carps In ASia and the characterization of t"apla genetic resources In Africa

Furthermore ICLARM continues to faCilitate the exchange of information among members

of the Network of Tropical Aquaculture SCientists (NTAS) and the Network of Tropical

Fisheries SCientists (NTFS) by publishing In Naga the two networks newsletters Aquabyte

and Flshbyte, respectively Currently, NTAS has 645 members from 95 countries, and

NTFS has 1 383 members from 129 countries

- ICLARM
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~ecently ICLARM expanded and restructured Its Internal

organization As a result, this chapter has been added to the

report to give an overview of the research programs and support

divIsions that became operational under the new system rn 1996

(one program on ftsh health, IS strll under development) More

detarls on specific prOjects and outputs can be found In the

chapter entitled Work rn 1996

BIodIversity and GenetIc Resources Program (BGRP) The

BiodiverSity and Genetic Resources Program pursues strategic research

on fish biodiversity and genetic resources and the development of genetic

resources research methods In partnership With rnternatlonal, regional and national agencies and rnstl

tutlons NGOs, SCientists, farmers and fishers

Accomplishments In 1996

The F,shBase 96 CD ROM was released at the 8 th International Coral Reef Symposium In

Panama City In June 1996 together With the 179 page book ftshBase 96 Concepts

deSign and data sources By the end of the year F,shBase had been expanded to cover

over 16 500 species With rnformatlon extracted from over 10000 references, and had

been dlstrrbuted to more than 700 users In 90 countrres Its collaborators had grown rn

number to over 200 rn more than 50 countrres In 1996, a number of SCientifiC papers

that drew exclUSively on F,shBase data and software were submitted for publication

The prOject Research on Trlapla Genetic Resources of Ghana for therr Future Conserva

tlon and Management rn F,sherres and Aquaculture was successfully completed rn June

Its marn output was a manual on species characterrzatlon, co published In 1996 by

ICLARM and the German Agency for Technical Cooperation (GTZ) ThiS manual was

presented for crrtlcal review and Improvement at an International workshop In Accra, the

proceedrngs of which wrll also be co published by ICLARM and GTZ

In 1996, BGRP took the lead In developing for ICLARM a draft poliCY document on

Intellectual Property Rights over aquatic genetic resources

In addition ICLARM s FlshBase team hosted the frrst Species 2000 International work

shop Species 2000 wrll produce a valid checklrst of all named organisms on earth about

1 75 mrilion species ICLARM has been tasked With developrng a prototype for the CD

ROM version of the checklist

A European Union funded prOject to strengthen flsherres and biodiverSity management In

Afrrcan, Carrbbean and PaCifiC countrres commenced ItS four year work program In Decem

ber ThiS IS the largest prOject Implemented by ICLARM It wrll use FlshBase to demon

strate the power of databases for research and management purposes, With tralnrng activi

ties In 50 developing countrres organized through five regional trarnlng nodes one each In

the Carrbbean and the PaCific and three In Afrrca

- ICLARM
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Program?

Germplasm Enhancement and Breeding Program (GEBP) This program develops techniques

for Improving breeds of fish, disseminates these techniques, and trains staff In their application

Accomplishments In 1996

-
The most Significant of AEP s 1996 actiVities was the fllst release of ReefBase, a compl

latlon of available knowledge about coral reefs Into one information repository for the

benefit of resource managers SCientists, students, divers and others The ReefBase 1 a

The Genetically Improved Farmed Tilapla (GIFT) proJect, which begdn In 1988, 15 a

major strategic research Initiative In the apphed genetics breeding a'ld germplasm Improve

ment of Nile tilapla (Oreochromls nt/ottcus) The GIFT prOject 15 closely allied With the

Dissemination of Genetically Improved Tilapla In ASia (DEGITA) proJect, which IS de

Signed to examine the performance of the GIFT strain and ItS socioeconomic Impact on fish

farming households In selected countries In ASia The Project has proved that the farming of

early maturing and more efficient strains of tilapla can result In lower prices for these

speCies, which will benefit poor people

The GIFT Project s first generation selection expenment for two traits (growth and fre

quency of spawning females) and the associated expenments to estimate the magnitude of

genotype (families) x season interaction and the response to selection for late and early

spawning females were conducted The Project also continued to prOVide technical assls

tance to the genetic evaluation component of on farm tnals The first phase of on farm tnals

conducted by DEGITA was completed Results of on farm tnals conducted under the

auspices of GIFT dUring 1991 1994 were analyzed Draft manuscnpts from the prOject 5

four complementary expenments (growth performance testing methodology, genetics of

carcass composItion sex ratios In d,allel cross expenmerlt, and response to selection for

frequency of early matunng females) were completed and reviewed

As a means of ensunng the continued and Increased availabihty of genetically Improved

strains, the national tilapla breeding program In the Philippines has evolved Into a non

profit foundation known as the GIFT Foundation International Inc Steps were initiated

to make the Foundation operational so that It can continue the GIFT actiVities after 1997

The Project also provided substantial contnbutlons to the International Network on Ge

netlcs In Aquaculture It gave Significant technical and logistical support to the organization

of the Third INGA Steering Committee meeting In Callo

At the request of national programs, tilapla genetic materials were transferred to the Gov

ernments of Bangladesh and Vietnam to Initiate formal breeding programs In these coun

tnes Breeding plans for GIFT tilapla, mngal and silver barb were established In close

consultation With SCientists from Vietnam s Research Institute for Aquaculture

Accompl.shments In 1996

AquatiC EnVironments Program (AEP) ThiS program was created In early 1996 to consolidate

and advance ICLARM s goals of Improving the conservation of aquatic habitats, especially coral

reefs and the management of coastal zones
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CD ROM and manual were released In Panama In June at the International Coral Reef

Symposium, which was attended by more than 1 500 people Information about the

database went out through publications, presentations and an extensive webpage on the

Internet By the end of the year, more than 300 copies of ReefBase had been dlsseml

nated ReefBase was designated as the official database of the Global Coral Reef Monl

tOrlng Network part of the International Coral Reef Initiative (JCRI) Both the Network

and ReefBase are a direct response to Priority actions Identified In the ICRI Framework for

Action now endorsed by over 80 countries

In 1996 AEP completed the Lagonoy Gulf ProJect, leading to speCifiC recommendations

for future management of the area ThiS prOject will contribute to an anticipated ICLARM

initiative to consolidate information from studies on 12 bays In the Philippines ThiS will

bring together a large amount of information on coastal management and will be extremely

helpful to national coastal zone planners throughout the tropics

ThiS year AEP further developed and tested a training package on coastal zone manage

ment The package will support training courses for local government officials throughout

the Philippines, concurrently, It will be modified for use In other developing countries

Fisheries Resources Assessment and Management Program (FRAMP) ThiS program seeks

better tools and approaches to assess and manage tropical fish stocks, including developing methods

for acquiring data for aquatic resources management Included In thiS program IS a SCientifiC assessment

of the role of marine reserves In fisheries management and the conservation of biodiverSity

Accomplishments In 1996

In 1996 a Windows based version of ECOPATH (ECOPATH 3 0), an ecosystem

assessment software deSigned for fisheries was released Individual modules of thiS soft

ware were also Improved and, In collaboration With sCientists at the University of British

Columbia In Canada and DIFRES In Denmark a new package for dynamiC systems model

lng, termed EcoSlm, has been developed Other advances Include the development of a

multlspecles analYSIS program and the development of a routine to determine yield per

recruit for incorporation Into ICLARM s FlshBase CD ROM The stock assessment pack

age, FAO/ICLARM Stock Assessment Tools (FISAT), was completed and tested exten

slvely FAO then replicated and distributed the package

The Jamaica based component of a new Caribbean marine protected areas (MPA) prOject

was launched In June In collaboration With the Centre for Marine SCiences of the Unlver

slty of the West Indies A 10 year Host Country Agreement Signed a few months later

With the Government of the British Virgin Islands gave ICLARM a formal office location In

the Caribbean, allOWing the second prOject component to proceed Work consists of

mOnitoring recrUitment rates of commercially Important coral reef fish uSing light traps and

fish traps and tagging and recapturing Indicator fish species In order to determine the

optimal placement and extent of marine protected areas

As a result of an ASian Development Bank funded planning workshop for ASian coastal

fisheries, a proposal has been developed for creating a prototype software for the effective

analySIS and Interpretation of eXisting trawl data from various countries In ASia ThiS soft

ware will enable researchers to better analyze trends In fisheries catches In the region and to

provide data for Improved fisheries management- ICLARM
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Two publications by the program In 1996 drew together the work of ICLARM and Its

collaborators spanning more than a decade of research The first, a CD ROM entitled

The San Miguel Bay Story presents the compded research and management reports on

the aquatic resources of San Miguel Bay In the Phdlpplnes The second IS a major book

synthesIzing an Immense amount of information on the fish resources of Western Indonesia

It was published JOintly by ICLARM and the German Agency for Technical Cooperation

(GTZ)

Integrated Aquaculture Agriculture Systems Program (IAASP) ThiS program alms to Improve

the productivity of smallholder farms through integration of fish farming and development of methods

to assess the sustalnabhty of Integrated aquaculture agriculture (IAA) systems

Accomplishments In 1996

A field gUide and a software users guide for RESTORE (consisting of farmer participatory

field procedures and software) were finalized for distribution along with the software to

72 beta test collaborators RESTORE was used by the Center of Development Studies at

Stockholm University In national and international training courses A start was made In

looking for a way to Incorporate gender perspectives to enhance RESTORE s analytical

capabilities

A five year study of the ecology and sustalnabdlty of Philippine rice based farms (Includ

Ing rice fish culture) was completed applYing ECOPATH, a steady state nutrient flow

modeling software, for the first time In a terrestrial enVIronment In collaboration With the

University of Kassel, a dynamiC Simulation model of the rice fish farming systems In the

Philippines was completed

A new Initiative was the commencement of a research activity on the potential for IAA In

the context of rainforest bufferzone management In collaboration With a bilateral develop

ment aid prOject In the uplands of QUlrlno province In Luzon, Philippines

Under the framework of ICLARM s collaboration With the Community Forestry Project

OUlrino (CFPO) on sustalnabdlty indicators for Integrated aquaculture systems, four train

Ing workshops on low external Input IAA technology were held With 37 farmers partici

patlng

Malaa-I Research Site An MOU With the Government of MalaWI was renewed for an

additional two years under a new cooperative relationship With the MalaWI Fisheries De

partment One of the activIties of the MalaWI office In 1996 was the documentation of

periodiCity of phytoplankton and zooplankton population cycles In small ponds over a

10 month period Small scale Integrated fish ponds are prodUCing Significant posItive 1m

pacts In Zomba DistrICt on a trial group of small farms which are being intensively mOnl

tored to better document the farmer deSigned Inputs and farming system Recognizing

the Importance of knowledge on SUitable local species for domestication eight native

species of fish were collected and observed under small scale fish farming conditions

Testing different denSities of fish per tank were tested With Inputs generated exclUSively

from local household wastes Two 10 month studies of the interaction between stocking

-



SIZe and partial harvesting methods were completed Preliminary trials In the use of tempo

rary ralnpools for fish production through stocking and nutrient Input were conducted In

several villages

Bangladesh Research S,te Work continued on developing sustainable technology for small

holder aquaculture through studies of the SOCioeconomiCS of nce frsh farms and through

prOVISion of training particularly on hatchery and broodstock management to avoid In

breeding, to national research and extension institutions and to NGOs Three eco region

specific centers were established to test carp polyculture and nce fish farming technologies

Programs on on farm low cost, low Input systems with grass and indigenous exotic carps

progressed satisfactorily In all 16 trarnlng programs were organized and 142 Government

and NGO extension workers along with 220 farmers were trained on hatchery and nursery

management of carp and catfishes Study tours for sCientists and policy makers were orga

nlzed In Malaysia, the Philippines and Thailand

Coastal Aquaculture and Stock Enhancement Program (CASEP) This program alms to Improve

the productivity of coral reef flshenes through the development of biotechlllcal systems for the culture

of high value species by village farmers and cost effective methods for propagating and releasing

Juvenrles to restore and enhance Inshore f,shenes Once they have been demonstrated to be economl

cally viable and environmentally sustainable, these methods will be Introduced to NARS In the ASia

PaCifiC region through reports, manuals and workshops The program operates from ICLARM s Coastal

Aquaculture Centre (CAC) In the Solomon Islands

Accomplrshments In 1996

Research on giant clams centers around developing Simple and profitable methods for farm

Ing that can be practiced by coastal villagers, and deVISing responsible and practical ways of

re establlshrng wild stocks The CAC contrnued to accumulate broodstock, Improve methods

for prodUCing seed clams Increase the number of Village farms, mOllltor large scale grow out

expenments and coordinate sales of giant clams to export markets The CAC developed

and tested the Viability of village based farming of giant clams In the Solomon Islands by

scaling up the production of cultured giant clams at Village farms prodUCing suffiCient cui

tured clams to develop and test new markets and assessing whether Village giant clam

farmers can grow giant clams at a profit

Systems for farming blackllp oysters In the open lagoon systems of the central western

PaCifiC were refrned by IdentifYing the types of sites where spat were most abundant,

removing spat from collectors after three months and rearing them In panel nets, and by

modifYing the deSign of the spat collectors

Two batches of sandflsh commercially the most Important sea cucumber, were produced In

the CAC hatchery The Juveniles rapid growth and Simple food requirements indicate

SUitability for mass rearing In hatchenes Because the culture of sea cucumbers depends on

good quality mlcroalgae, an algal culture unit was constructed In May By the end of the

year CAC had established 12 algal strarns In stock cultures and routinely produced 20

liter carboys of five species

- ICLARM
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ICLARM together with several collaborating institutions further tested the Idea that the

number and body size of commercially valuable tropical Invertebrates Increase Inside a

marine protected area In 1996 the CAC surveyed the abundance of Invertebrates In a

year old reserve In the Arnavon Islands and found little Indication of Increasing numbers of

commercially exploited species In the reserve relative to control areas

Policy Research and Impact Assessment Program (PRIAP) This program became operational

In 1996, incorporating past and ongoing research activities on fisheries co management, evaluation

and assessment of aquaculture technologies, bloeconomlc analysIs and valuation of coastal resources

PRIAP examines a range of policy Issues and measures by which governments might strive to Increase

the supply of fish for human consumption and the economic benefits from the fisheries sector

Accomplishments In 1996

The fisheries co management prOject a five year effort toward the goal of sustainable and

equitable management of fisheries In developing countries made conSiderable progress In

1996 Work Included Initiation of collaborative prlot site actiVities In Honda Bay Philip

pines conclusion of a report on enforcement and compliance with fisheries regulations In

Southeast ASia completion of a global literature review and comparative analysIs of frsh

erles co management and analysIs of co management arrangements In Zambian and Zim

babwean Inshore fisheries Fisheries co management case studies got underway In the Phrl

Ipplnes and Bangladesh The prOject also produced an Impact evaluation of communrty

based coastal resource management prOjects In the Phrllpplnes

A report was prepared on the concepts experiences and lessons learned deSCribed at a

workshop on management systems of marine fisheries and other coastal resources fOCUSSing

on Palawan Philippines

Policy research on user based management of Inland openwater fisheries In Bangladesh

became operational with 16 waterbodles dUring 1996 Socioeconomic surveys were

completed In all participating communrtles The baseline surveys are being followed up by

periodiC surveys of fishing activity In the same households In addition to annual Impact

evaluation Routine monitoring of fishing effort catches and fish markets was started for

12 waterbodles The Project also helped train local government and non government staff

In surveYing and monrtOrlng and conducted public awareness campaigns through newslet

ters and Fish Fall displays on community based fisheries management

A study of the contribution of fisheries to food security In Vietnam Involved a socloeco

nomic baseline survey of 365 farm households In the central Mekong Delta region Data

gathering for economic and production function analyses began In July The Bangus (Mrlk

fish) Fry Resource Assessment Project generated a baseline survey of 190 fry gatherers

from five regions In the Phrllpplnes set up monthly monltorrng of fry gathering actiVities

and volume of trade, and collection of time series Information on mrlkflsh fry To help the

Mekong River CommiSSion conduct poliCY analysIs of freshwater capture fisheries In Cam

bodla ICLARM assisted In the creation of a database of household survey Information

and trained government staff In data analysIs -
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Information and Training Program (ITP) The ITP comprises three units Library and Information

SerVices, Publications and Translations In 1996 all Units broadened their services At the same time

an In depth analySIS was undertaken of the role and operations of the whole Program, and a new and

progressive future focus was designed for Implementation rn 1997

Accomphshments In 1996

LIbrary andInformatIon ServIces UnIt (LlSU) Under the Selective Fisheries Information

Service (SFIS), L1SU responded to 345 querres from 66 countrres Of these querres

245 were answered free of charge, 40 were answered for a fee, 22 on exchange, and 18

were referred elsewhere Sixty seven percent of rnquilies came from developrng countrres

The library provided rnformatlon and reference services to 1 739 users rangrng from

university students to government workers consultants, admrnlstrators and policy makers

L1SU facrlltated the acquIsition of books and other reference materrals for ICLARM s

outreach offices contrrbuted Citations to the AquatiC SCiences and Flsherres Information

System (ASFIS) and the AquatiC SCiences and Flsherres Abstracts (ASFA) databases

and provided training for ICLARM staff and VISitorS rn the use of varrous literature In

dexes

The library also strengthened ItS cooperative ties With Ilbrarres and rnstltutlons world

wide In order to publiCize the library and Its services to a wide audience a GUide to

ICLARM Information Resources and Services brochure and a flyer were produced A

general rnformatlon article about the library was submitted to SIX different newsletters

As of December 1996 the library s collection contained 14 927 volumes of

books and monographs 6994 titles of reprrnts 397 Items of nonbook materrals, 3 307

slides 4 332 photos and 1 297 serral titles Five bibliographic databases serve as

catalogs and Indexes to the collections

PubltcatIons UnIt The Unit produced five publications rn the Center s Technical Serres,

four Issues of Naga the ICLARM Quarterly a publlshrng gUide, a bulletin on San Miguel

Bay an annual report an operational plan and nine brochures The Unit also undertook

the production of the ASian fishenes SCIence Journal In addition to providing copyedltlng

service for ICLARM staff the Unit also prepared posters, slides and other presentation

materrals for 10 International exhibits In 19°6 It was responsible for sales and marketing

of ICLARM publications, which generated about US$ 11 000 The Unit participated

rn two Phrllpplne and five rnternatlonal bookfalrs by sending relevant publications Several

press releases were submitted to and featured rn national, regional and International media

TranslatIon UnIt In 1996 ICLARM s Translation Unit translated a conference proceed

Ings portions of articles for Naga, and an atlas on freshwater fish In Afrrca under the

Technical Serres The Unit expanded ItS specialized terminology database and began uSing

the Internet to locate and work With freelance translators- ICLARM
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International Partnerships and Networks Program (IPNP) For better management of living

aquatic resources worldwide, this program was created to strengthen eXisting research partnerships

and to forge new partnerships with national and international Instltulions and NGOs, through re

search and information networks as well as collaborative research programs with and among develop

Ing countries

Accomplishments In 1996

Through the International Network on Genetics In Aquaculture (INGA) national breed

Ing programs have been developed for genetically Improved Nde tdapla (GIFT) and other

aquaculture species In IndoneSia and Vietnam, training programs In quantitative genetics

and selective breeding have been conducted, and national chapters of INGA have been

formed The IPNP compiled a proceedings of the Third INGA Steering Committee Meeting

held In Cairo

The ASian Fisheries SOCIal SCience Research Network (AFSSRN) which has been work

Ing to enhance domestic SOCial sCience research capabilities since 1983, currently com

prlSes more than 80 researchers at universities research Institutions and government fisher

les agenCies throughout Southeast ASia In March the AFSSRN became subsumed as a

section under the ASian Fisheries SOCiety ICLARM continued to offer technical guidance

and service as an executive committee member Both the AFSSRN newsletter and the

INGA newsletter have been Incorporated Into Naga the ICLARM Ouarterly

The Network of Tropical Aquaculture SCientists (NTAS) and Network of Tropical Fish

erles SCientists (NTFS) continued to attract new members and articles for publication In

the Aquabyte and Flshbyte sections of Naga

The ICLARM Partnership PoliCY for Research and Related Activities was approved by the

Board of Trustees paving the way for ICLARM to continue budding partnerships With

NARS, NGOs, government offices, private sector bodies, research institutes and deve

lopment assistance agencies In 1996 ICLARM organized a workshop to Identify areas of

pOSSible collaboration With PhdlPPlne NARS and participated In a Priority setting exer

me of the ASia PaCIfiC ASSOCiation of Research Institutions (APAARI)

External Relations Office (ERO) ThiS office was created In 1996 to help management and staff

With fund raiSing, CGIAR and donor relations Its plans Include Improved and more timely compll

ance With the CGIAR program planning documents, development of a donor strategy to guide the

Center In maintaining and where pOSSible increasing ItS quantum of unrestricted funds aSSIStance to

staff With prOject development and donor negotiations to Increase the flow of prOject related funding

to the Center and the supply of better information on donors and agencies supporting fisheries and

agricultural research In Africa and West ASia The ERO IS expected to Improve ICLARM s partici

patlon In the CGIAR system and ItS relations With donors
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Corporate Services DIvISion (CSD) The Corporate Services DIvIsion provides most of the

operational support to the Center s research activities It IS organized rnto the following functional

units Finance and Management Information, Human Resources, Program and Administrative Ser

vices and Computer Services Unit

Corporate Services Intends to focus Its efforts on contrnued development and Implementation of

management systems that would have a significant Impact on the Center s efficiency effectiveness and

accountability PriOrities rnclude the finalization of a new accountrng system (Platrnum) the contrnued

development of human resources poliCies and procedures, Improved center wide systems and tele

commUnications support and admrnlstratlve operations Support to the outreach sites will be rn

creased with particular focus on assisting the new regional facility rn Egypt

Office of the Deputy Director General (Programs) This office was established In mid 1996 to

oversee the plannrng Implementation, Impact assessment and reportrng of ICLARM s sCientific pro

grams In 1996 the office helped coordrnate the development of ICLARM s Medium term Plan for

the period 1998 2000 and will contrnue to aSSISt rn the formulation of sCientific reviews new

prOject development (especially with respect to the new Initiative rn Egypt rn conjunction with the

new Deputy Director General Africa and West ASia and colleagues) and rn the long term develop

ment of ICLARM s strategic plan

Office of the Director General This office carrres out the central executive management functions

of ICLARM and IS responsible for Implementing Board poliCies and advlsrng the Board on manage

ment and poliCY matters A new structure was Introduced rn 1996 and new positions were filled,

Including a Deputy Director General (Programs) The Associate Director General (Corporate Ser

vices) and Director of International Relations also form part of the executive team A Deputy Director

General (Africa and West ASia) was hired to start In 1997

•

- ICLARM
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Research Projects

BIODIVERSITY AND GENETIC RESOURCES PROGRAM

Title Duration Donor' Collaborating Inslltullons'

A1 DEVELOPMENT OF A BIOLOGICAL A1 October 1988 EU FAa AFS EPOMEX International Game FISh

DATABASE ON FISH (FISHBASE) November 1996 ICLARM core funds AssOCIation MRAG WCMC Musee Royal de

I Af"que Centrale Museum National d H,stolre

A2 STRENGTHENING OF FISHERIES A2 December 1996 EU Naturelle ZIM UnlverSidad Autonoma de

'\ND BIODIVERSITY MANAGEMENT IN December 2000 ICLARM core funds Campeche MexIco UBC other institutiOns

AFRIC'\ CARIBBEAN AND PACIFIC (ACP) and Individual researchers

COUNTRIES

B RESEARCH ON THE TI LAP",\ 1991 June 1996 BMliGTZ lAB Ghana ZIM

GENETIC RESOURCES OF GHANA

FOR THEIR FUTURE CONSERVATION

AND MANAGEMENT IN FISHERIE~

'\ND AOUACULTURE

( CONSERVATION OF FI~H GENETIC To be determined CGIAR/SGRI To be determined linkages sought with

RESOURCES AND AOUATIC BIO start up funds international Institutions such as IPGRI

DIVERSITY THROUGH SUST '\INABLE USE provided for 1996 and IUCN and with ,a"ous f,sh genetics

and biodiverSity research programs worldwide

I

•

GERMPLASM ENHANCEMENT AND BREEDING PROGRAM

A GENETIC If \PROVEMENT OF

F'\RMED TIL,\PIAS (GIFT) PHASE II

B DISSEMIN'\TION '\ND EVALUATION

OF GENETi<ALLV IMPROVEC TIL'\PI~

SPECIEc IN AsI~ (DEGITA)

See lISt of acronyms on p 77

-

1993 1997

June 1994

December 1996

UNDP/

Sustainable Energy

and EnVironment DIVISion

ADS

NFFTRC Philippines BFAR FAC;CLSU

,\KVAFORSK through NORI'GRIC/NORAD

Bangladesh Flshf'r1es Research Institute

ThaIland National Aquaculture Genetics

Research Institute

V,etnam ResearLh Institute for Aquaculture

Nos 1 & 2

ICLARM



C COMPARISON OF THE NUTRITIONAL

ENERGETICS OF Two NILE TILAPIA

STRAINS AN ExPERIMENTAL GIFT

STRAIN AND THE WIDELY FARMED THAI

CHITLADA STRAIN

April 1995

Apnl1997

DflD AIT

AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS PROGRAM

A REEFBASE A GLOBAL DATABASE

OF CORAL REEF SYSTEMS

AND THEIR RESOURCES

October 1993

September 2001

EU WCMC Numerous agenCIes prOViding

Netherlands MinISter for checking and uSing data

Development Cooperation

ICLARM core funds

FISHERIES RESOURCES ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

Rockefeller Brothers Fund Ph,l,ppmes Ha"bon Foundation PCAMRD

Philippine Department of FSP BFAR

As"culture FSP

-

DOF MalaYSia DOF Thailand Human

DOF Brunei National UniverSity of Singapore

Coastal Resources Center

DENR BFAR IIRR

Geography Research Center HanOI

Envllonmental Research Center Bogor

Ag"cultural University IndoneSia

and Oceanography Greenland FlShe"es

Research Institute Lake TanganYika Research

Prolect Finland

research institutions

RUSSIan Federal Research Institute of FlShe"es

UP MSI Silliman UniverSity Palawan

National Ag"cultural College

FlShe"es Centre UBC DI FRES

UniverSity of WarWick UK PCAMRD

FAO with Informal linkages with other

USA UniverSity of Rhode Island Coastal

ICLARM core funds

ICLARM core funds

DANIDA

European CommISSion

ICLARM core funds

February 1990

January 1998

July 1979

Apnl1995

August 1996

January 1996

March 1997

January 1995

December 1996

January 1994

November 1995

Ongoing from

REEF SYSTEMS

B MODELING OF

MULTISPECIES FISHERIES

B RESOURCE AND ECOLOGICAL

AsSESSMENT TRAINING FOR THE

FISHERIES SECTOR PROGRAM

OF THE PHILIPPINES

C VALUATION OF CORAL

D NATIONAL COURSE

ON INTEGRATED COASTAL

ZONE MANAGEMENT

" TROPICAL FISH

STOCK ASSESSMENT

E COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS

OF COASTAL TRANSECTS
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Durallon Donor' Collaboratms I"stltutlons'

C SUSTAINABLE EXPLOITATION

Of COASTAL FISH STOCKS IN ASIA

D TESTING THE USE Of MARINE

PROTECTED ARE,AS TO MANAGE

FISHERIES FOR TROPICAL CORAL

REEf INVERTEBRATES

ARNAVON ISLANDS

E THE ROLE OF MARINE PROTECTED

AREAS IN FISHERIES MANAGEMENT

AND BIODIVERSITY CONSERVATION

IN CORAL REEF ECOSYSTEMS

January

December 1996

October 1994

February 1999

January 1996

December 1999

ADB Vanous developlllg country members of ADS

ICLARM core funds

ACIAR GBRMPA Solomon Islands MinIStry of

Agnculture and FlShenes Solomon Islands

MIIIlStry of Forests EnVifonment and

Comervatlon The Nature Conservancy

lADS (Jamaica Centre for Manne SCiences UniverSity of the

component) West Indies Jamaica Department of

Dfl D (BVI component) Conservation and FISheries BVI

INTEGRATED AQUACULTURE-AGRICULTURE SYSTEMS PROGRAM

'\ INTEGRATED RESOURCES

MANAGEMENT (IRM) GROUP

AND DEVELOPMENT OF

RESTORE SOF1WARE

B DEVELOPMENT OF SUSTAINABILITY

INDICATORS FOR INTEGRATED

AGRICULTURE AOUACULTURE

FARMING SYSTEMS

C A MODELING ApPROACH TO THE

DETERMINATION OF ECOLOGIC,\L

SUSTAIN'\BILITY IN INTEGRATED

AGRICULTURE AOUACULTURE

FARMING SYSTEMS

D RESEARCH FOR DEVELOPMENT

OF SUSTAINABLE AOUACULTURE

PRACTICES

See lISt of acronyms on p 77

-

Ongoing from 1991

October 1994

September 1996

1994 May 1996

1993 1998

ICLARM core funds

BMl/GTZ

DANIDA

USAID

IIRR ICLARM outreach teams and national

collaborators In Bangladesh MalawI Vietnam

and other countries

University of Kassel Germany national

Imtltutlons III the Phil,ppllles and Vietnam

ICLARM outreach teams and national

collaborators

RVAU national IIIstltutlonS III the Philippines

FlShenes Research Instltute Bangladesh

anous NGOs

ICLARM



COASTAL AQUACULTURE AND STOCK ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM

A BIOTECHNICAL SYSTEMS Operational Since 1987 ACIAR Solomon Islands MinIStry of Agnculture and

FOR CULTIVATION OF GIANT CLAMS ThIS phase mid 1995 EU FlShenes James Cook University FAO

to December 1999 ESCAP

B DEVELOPMENT OF SMALL SCALE November 1995 ACIAR Solomon Islands MinIStry of Agnculture and

VILL '\GE FARMS FOR BLACKLIP PEARL November 1997 FlShenes James Cook UfliverSity

OYSTERS IN SOLOMON ISLANDS Cook Islands MinIStry of Manne Resources

USING WILD SPAT

C DEVELOPMENT OF METHODS Operational since 1993 ACIAR Solomon Islands MinIStry of Agnculture and

FOR THE MASS REARING OF ThIS phase January 1995 FlShenes AdvISOry Panel from Advanced

TROPICAL SEA CUCUMBERS FOR to December 1999 SCientific Instltutlons In Australia coordinated

THE PURPOSE OF ENHANCING by ACIAR

WILD STOCKS

POLICY RESEARCH AND IMPACT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

MalaYSia IndoneSia Philippines Mozambique

Zimbabwe MalaWI West Afnca ZambIa

South Afnca and the Caribbean1

Orgafllzatlons from Denmark Vietnam Thailand

CTU Vietnam SEAFDEC AFSSRN

Apnl 1994 Apnl 1999 DANIDAA FISHERIES Co MANAGEMENT

PPOJECT

B SOCIOECONOMIC COMPONENT September 1996 FCRI/HAKI

OF THE PROJECT SUPPORT December 1997

STRENGTHENING THE INSTITUTIONAL

CAPACITY FOR SUSTAINABLE

AOUACULTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE

SOUTHERN PART OF VIETNAM

C A REVIEW AND EvALUATION OF August 1995 USAID

COMMUNITY BASED COASTAL Apnl1996

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT PROJECTS

IN THE PHILIPPINES 1984 1994

'Denmark NSC Vietnam MInistry of Flshenes National Center Thailand DOF Kasetsart University Pnnce of Songkla University

MalaySia UPM IndoneSia RIMF Directorate General of Flshenes IndoneSian Flshenes Socioeconomic Research Network Phlllppmes

SEAFDEC AQD University of the Philippines College of Public Administration DENR SEARCA Tambuyog Development Foundation

UPV Mozambique Institute for Development of Small Scale Flshenes Zimbabwe Center for Applied SOCial SCiences University of

Zimbabwe Lake Kanba Flshenes Research Institute MalaWI Flshenes Department Chancellor College West Africa Programme for

Integrated Development of Artlsanal Flshenes Zambia DOF South Africa University of Cape Town Sea Flshenes Research Inslltute

,-."*"oIol,j,.l.I,..lJj Caribbean CARICOM Flshenes Resource Assessment and Management Program
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Duratoon Donor' Collaboratong Instltutoons'

D POLICY RESE ~RCH ON Aprrl1996 The Ford Foundation Bangladesh DOF BRAC Calltas Prosh'ka

USER B/ISED MA'irGEMENT June 1998 Banchte Shekha Bancha~ Z,ban CRED

THE CASE OF INLA.ND OPENWATER

FISHERIES OF BANGLADESH

E SOCIOECONO~1IC IMPACT STUDIEo July 1996 MRC Bangladesh DOF MRC

OF FISH CULTURE EXTENSION ON THE June 1998

FARMING SYSTEMS OF BA'iGLADESH

PHASE II

F BANGUS FRY RESOURCE March 1996 BFAR EFAR SENDEC PCAMRD

ASSESSMENT PROJECT June 1997 PCAMRD

G SOCIOECONOMIC A.,'iD POLICY October 1996 MRC Cambodia DOF MRC

'\NALYSIS OF FRESHWA-ER CAPTURe March 1997

FISHERIES OF CAMBODI '\

H INTERN/lTIONf\L CO'iSULT~TION 1996 1997 DANIDA IFPRI IFM NSC RVAU

ON FISHERY POLICY RESEARCH IN

DEVELOPING COUNTRIES

I LEGAL AND INSTITUTIONAL October 1996 SIDA

AN/ILYSIS OF CO/ISTAL RE<;OUR:E<; September 1998

Co M'\'iA.GEMENT

I Ev A.LuniON OF PERFORMANCE November 1996 Netherlands MinISter

'F FI,HER,ES Co MAN/IGEMENT October 1998 for Development

IN'TITUTIONS CooperatIon

-
See lISt of acronyms on p 77
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INTERNATIONAL PARTNERSHIPS AND NETWORKS PROGRAM

A NETWORK OF TROPICAL Ongoing from FAO FAO/DANIDA Training Course In

FISHERIES SCIENTISTS (NTFS) April 1982 ICLARM core funds Tropical FISh Stock Assessment

B NETWORK OF TROPICAL Ongoing from ICLARM core funds

AOUACULTURE SCIENTISTS (NTAS) July 1987

C ASIAN FISHERIES SOCIAL Aprd 1994 to IDRC Organizations from IndoneSia MalaYSia

SCIENCE RESEARCH NETWORK March 1996 Phd,pplnes Thailand and V,etnam2

(PH'\SE IV)

D INTERNATIONAL NETWORK ON Ongoing from UNDP Organizations from Bangladesh China

GENETICS IN AOUACULTURE (INGA) August 1993 Norwegian MinIStry of Cote d Ivotre Egypt FIJI Ghana India

Foreign Affatrs IndoneSia MalawI MalaYSia Phd,pp,nes

ICLARM core funds Thailand and V,etnam3

IndonesIa Faculty of Economics Unrversltas Dlponegoro CRIFI RIMF MalaysIa Faculty of Economics and Admlnlstralion UM Natural

Resource Economics Department UPM Philippines BFAR FAC/CLSU SEAFDEC AQD Department of Agricultural Economics College

of Economics and Management UPLB Faculty of Arts and SCiences UPV Thailand Fisheries Economics Research SubdivIsion DOF

Department of Agricultural and Resource Economics Faculty of Economics and BUSiness Administration Kasetsart Unrverslty Coastal

Resources Institute Prince of Songkla University Vietnam Ministry of Fisheries CTU

, Bangladesh Fisheries Research Institute Mymenslngh Chma Department of Aquaculture Shanghai Cote d IVOIre Fish Research

Center Bouake Egypt Central Laboratory for Aquaculture Research Abbassa FIJI Ministry of Agriculture Fisheries and Forestry Suva

Ghana Fishery DIVISion Achlmota India Central Institute of Freshwater Aquaculture Central Institute of Fisheries Education Indonesia

Central Research Institute for Freshwater Fisheries MalawI University of MalawI Zomba Fisheries Department MalaysIa Insltute of Post

Graduate Studies and Research UM Philippines BFAR FAC/CLSU Thailand National Aquaculture Genetics Research Institute

VIetnam Research Institute for Aquaculture Ha Bac
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PublIshed Works

rchlS section lists the variety of Journal articles book chapters, conference proceedings and other

works by ICLARM staff that were published In 1996 Also Included are publications by vIsiting

SCientists collaborators or others who received substantial support assistance or superVISion from

ICLARM

BIodIversIty and Genetic Resources Program

Blmbao, M P and R S V Pullin The network of tropical aquaculture SCientists (NTAS) 1987

1996 Naga ICLARMQ 19(3)2731

Falk, T M , E K Abban, S Oberst W Vrllwock R S V Pullin and L Renwrantz A biochemical

laboratory manual for species characterization of some trlapllne fishes ICLARM Educ

Ser 17 93 p

FlshBase 1996 FlshBase 96 CD ROM ICLARM Manrla

Froese, R A computerized procedure for Identifying misspellings and synonyms In checklists of fishes

p 219 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto (eds ) Baseline studies of biodiverSity the fish

resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM Stud Rev 23

Froese R A data rich approach to assess biodiverSity, p 127 136 In J A McNeely and S

Somchevlta (eds ) BiodiverSity In ASia challenges and opportUnities for the SCientifiC

communrty Office of Envrronmental PoliCy and Planning, Mlnrstry of SCience, Technology

and Envrronment Bangkok, Tharland

Froese R Fish genetic resources databases present and future p 16 In R SV Pullin and C M V

Casal (eds ) Consultation on fish genetic resources ICLARM Conf Proc 51

Froese, R Nomencla> Hal changes In Trawled Fishes of Southern IndoneSia and Northwestern Austra

lla, p 217 In D Pauly and P Martosu6roto (eds ) Baseline studies of biodiverSity the

fish resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM Stud Rev 23

Froese, Rand D Pauly AnnounCing the release of FlshBase 96 Naga, ICLARM 0 19(2) 23

Froese Rand D Pauly Editors FlshBase 96 concepts, deSign and data sources ICLARM

Manrla, 179 p

Froese R S Luna and E Capull Checklist of marine fishes of IndoneSia comprled from published

literature, p 217 275 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto (eds ) Baseline studies of

biodiverSity the fish resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM Stud Rev 23

Palomares M Land D Pauly Models for estimating the food consumption of trlaplas p 211

222 In R S V Pullin J Lazard, M Legendre, J B Amon Koth,as and D Pauly (eds )

The Third International Symposium on Trlapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Pullin, R S V BiodiverSity and aquaculture p 400 423 In F d, Castrl and T Younes (eds )

BiodiverSity, SCience and development towards a new partnership CAB International

Wallingford, UK

Pullin R S V World tria pia culture and Its future prospects p 1 16 In R S V Pullin, J Lazard

M Legendre J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Thrrd International Symposium

on Trlapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Pullin R S V, J Lazard, M Legendre J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly Editors The Thrrd

International Symposium on Trlapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41, 575 p

Pullin R S V and C V Casal, Editors Consultation on fish genetic resources ICLARM Conf

Proc 51, 61 p
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Pullin} R S V ICLARM s fish genetic resources activities, p 1 5 In R S V Pullin and C M V Casal

(eds ) Consultation on fish genetic resources ICLARM Conf Proc 51

Pullin, R S V Fish genetic resources} the International Network on Genetics In Aquaculture (INGA)

and breeding programs p 18 In R S V Pullin and C M V Casal (eds ) Consultation on

fish genetic resources ICLARM Conf Proc 51

Pullin R S V and D M Bartley Blosafety and fish genetic resources, p 33 In R S V Pullin and

C M V Casal (eds ) Consultation on fish genetic resources ICLARM Conf Proc 51

Vdlwock W U Slenknecht} R Froese and L Agustin The development of a tdapla strain registry

as part of FlshBase} p 553 In R S V Pullin J Lazard M Legendre} J B Amon

Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International Symposium on Tdapla In Aquaculture

ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Germplasm Enhancement and Breeding Program

Acosta B 0 E E DioniSIO and A E Eknath Growth and food conversion of five strainS of Nile

tdapla (Oreochromls mlotlcus) fry} p 537 In R S V Pullin, J Lazard} M Legendre,

J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International Symposium on Tllapla In

Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41 (Poster)

Eknath, A E }J B Capdl, J C Dantlng, M S Palada de Vera, E E DIOniSIO, H L Bolivar} R A

Reyes and M M Tayamen A practical quantitative method to estimate relative reproduc

tlve activity In Oreochromls mlottcus} p 290 298 In R S V Pullin} J Lazard} M

Legendre} J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International Symposium on

Tdapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Velasco, R R , M J R Pantel J M Macaranas} C C Janagap and A E Eknath Truss morphomet

riC characterization of eight strains of Nile tdapla (Oreochromls mlottcus)} p 41 5 425

In R S V Pullin} J Lazard, M Legendre} J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The

Third International Symposium on Tdapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

AquatIC EnVIronments Program

ICLARM 1996 ArtifiCial reefs In the PhdlpPInes are they the best solution? (Brochure)

Kesner, K PN ReefBase 1 0 A global coral reef database on CD Naga} ICLARM 0 19(2) 22

Maragos, J E M P Crosby and J W McManus Coral reefs and biodiversity a critical and

threatened relationship Oceanography 9(1) 83 99

McManus J Wand M C A Ablan, Editors 1996 ReefBase a global database on coral reefs

and their resources ICLARM Manda 144 p

McManus J W SOCIal and economic aspects of reef fisheries and theIr management P 249281

In N V C Polunln and C M Roberts Ceds) Reef fisheries Chapman and Hall London

McManus J W Marine bottomflsh commUnities from the Indian Ocean coast of Ball to mid Sumatra

P 91 101 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto Ceds ) Baseline studies on biodiverSIty the

fish resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM Stud Rev 23

ReefBase ReefBase a global database on coral reefs and their resources Ver 1 0 CD ROM

ICLARM Manda

Sada S J McKenna S Formaclon G Sdvestre and J McManus Empirical methods and models

for multlspecles stock assessment} p 403 472 In V Galucci S Sada D Gustafson and

B Rothschild (ds ) Stock assessment quantitative methods and applications for small

scale fisheries CRC Press Boca Raton USA
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Sdvestre, G T Integrated management of coastal flsherres lessons from Initiatives In San Miguel Bay

Phdlpplnes ICLARM, Manda, 13 p

Ziegler P Incorporating ECOPATH 3 0 Into ReefBase Naga, ICLARM 0 19(2) 25

Fisheries Resources Assessment and Management Program

AqUisap, A C M A Carrgma, PB Carrno VM J Castrrllo, FC Gayando, Jr , M E S Guzman

C C Janagap J L Maclean D Pauly, E T Tech and R M Temprosa ASian flsherres

sCience a profde p 457 488 In S S De Sdva (ed ) Perspectives In ASian flsherres

ASian Flsherres Society, Manda

ArregUin Sanchez F J L Munro M C Balgos and D Pauly Editors Biology of tropical groupers

and snappers ICLARM Conf Proc 48, 418 p

Chrrstensen V Managing flsherres Involving predator and prey species Rev Fish Bioi Flsherres

6 126

Chrrstensen, V POints of view virtual population reality Rev Fish Bioi Flsherres 6 243 247

Chrrstensen V and D Pauly Ecological modeling for all Naga, ICLARM 0 19(2) 27 28

Gayantlo Jr FC P Sparre and D Pauly The FAO ICLARM Stock Assessment Tools user s

gUide FAO Comput<>rrzed Information Serres (Flsherres), No 7 Rome

Martosubroto P T SUJastanl and D Pauly The mid 1970s demersal resources In the Indonesian

side of the Malacca Strait p 40 46 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto (eds ) Baseline

studies of biodiversity the fish resources of Western Indonesia ICLARM Stud Rev 23

Munro J L Fish genetic resources and the Coastal Aquaculture Centre p 17 In R S V Pullin and

C V Casal (eds ) Consultation on fish genetic resources ICLARM Conf Proc 51

Munro J L The scope of tropical reef fisheries and their management p 1 1 4 In N Polunrn and

C Roberts (eds ) Reef fisheries Chapman and Hall London

Pauly D BiodiverSity and the retrospective analYSIS of demersal trawl surveys a programmatic ap

proach p 1 6 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto (eds ) Baseline studies of biodiverSity

the fish resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM Stud Rev 23

Pauly D A case study of Nemlpterus thosaporml a k a N margmatus, p 199 In D Pauly and P

Martosubroto (eds ) Baseline studies of biodiverSity the fish resources of Western Indo

nesla ICLARM Stud Rev 23

Paulv D Fleet operational economiC and cultural determinants of bycatch uses In southeast ASia, p

285 288 In SolVing bycatch conSiderations for today and tomorrow Alaska Sea Grant

College Program Report No 96 03 University of Alaska Fairbanks

Pauly D Fisheries biology a new tool kit for dealing With new problems p 449 455 In S S De

Stlva (ed ) Perspectives In ASian flsherres ASian Fisheries Society, Mantia

Pauly D ITOs the assumptions behind the meme Rev Fish Bioi Flsherres 6( 1) 109 112

Pauly D One ~undred mtliion tonnes of fish and flsherres research Flsherres Research 25(1) 25 38

Paul) D On editing a newsletter (such as fishbyte) Naga, ICLARM 0 19(3) 34 36

Paul) D Reasons for studying the Lelognathldae, p 177 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto (eds )

Baseline studies of blodlver'lty the fish resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM Stud

Rev 23

Pauly D Some reflections on Professor Ray Beverton FRS 1922 1995 ICES/ClEM Information

(27) March 1996 16

Pauly D F ArregUin Sanchez J L Munro and M Balgos Biology, flsherres and culture of snappers

and groupers workshop conclUSions and updates to 1996 p 1 lOin F ArregUin

Sanchez J L Munro M C Balgos and D Pauly (eds ) Biology of tropical groupers and

snappers ICLARM Conf Proc 48
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Pauly D and C Blnohlan FlshBase and AUXIMS tools for comparing life history patterns, growth

and natural mortality of fish applications to snapper and groupers, p 218 243 In F

Arreguin Sanchez, J L Munro M C Balgos and D Pauly (eds ) Biology of tropical

groupers and snappers ICLARM Conf Proc 48

Pauly D A Cabanban and FS B Torres, Jr Flsherres biology of 40 trawl caught teleosts of

Western IndoneSia p 135 216 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto (eds) Baselrne

studies of biodiverSity the fish resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM Stud Rev 23

Pauly, D and V Chrrstensen Chapter 22 ECOPATH models of coral reef ecosystems, p 137

144 InJ W McManus and M C Ablan (eds) ReefBase a global database on coral

reefs and their resources ICLARM, Manda

Pauly D and V ChrIStensen Mass balance models of northeastern PaCIfiC ecosystems Fisheries

Centre Research Reports, vol 4(1) University of Brrtlsh Columbia

Pauly, D and V Chrrstensen Rehabdltatlng fished ecosystems insights from the past Naga ICLARM

o 19(3) 13 14

Pauly D and P Martosubroto, Editors Baseline studies of biodiversity the fish resources of West

ern IndoneSia ICLARM Stud Rev 23,312 p

Pauly, D , P Martosubroto and J Saeger The Muttara 4 surveys In the Java and southern South

China Seas November 1974 to July 1976 p 47 54 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto

(eds ) Baseline studies of biodiverSity the fish resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM

Stud Rev 23

Pauly D ,J Moreau and FC Gayando Jr A new method for comparrng the growth performance

of fishes, applied to wdd and farmed tdaplas p 433 441 In R S V Pullin, J Lazard,

M Legendre, J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International Sympo

slum on Tdapla and Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Polunln N V C , C M Roberts and D Pauly Developments In tropical reef flsherres SCience and

management p 361 377 In N V C Polunln and C M Roberts (eds ) Reef flsherres

Chapman and Hall London

Torres Jr F I A Cabanban, S Blenvenlda, J McManus, M Preln and D Pauly USing the NAN

SIS and FrSAT software to create a trawl survey database for Western IndoneSia p

276283 In D Pauly and P Martosubroto (eds ) Baseline studies of biodiversity the

fish resources of Western IndoneSia ICLARM Stud Rev 23

Integrated Aquaculture Agriculture Systems Program

Ahmed M, M P Blmbao and M V Gupta Economics of tdapla aquaculture In small waterbodles

In Bangladesh p 471 475 In R S V Pullin J Lazard M Legendre, J B Amon

Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International Symposium on Tdapla In Aquacul

ture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Blmbao M P and M Ahmed Regional trends In trlapla production and prrces In the Phrllpplnes p

476 487 In R 5 V Pullin J Lazard M Legendre J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly

(eds ) The Third International Symposium on Tdapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Canf

Proc 41

Brummett R E The context of ~mallholdlng Integrated aquaculture In Mala~, a case study for

subSaharan Afrrca Naga ICLARM 0 18 (4) 8 10

Brummett R E and B A Haight Research development linkages, p 145 169 In M Martinez

Espinosa (comp ) Report of the expert consultation on small scale rural aquaculture FAO

Fish Rep No 548, Rome



Brummett, R E and K Katamballka Protocols for the development of indigenous species polyculture

of indigenous species under Mala~lan smallholder condilions Aquaculture Research

27 225 233

Brummett, R E and N Mattson Zooplankton population periodicity In a tropical pond Naga,

ICLARM 0 19(1) 27 28

Brummett, R E Species selection for smallholder aquaculture In subSaharan Africa Naga, ICLARM

019(4)1922

Brummett, R E ,R Noble and F Chlkafumbwa Farmer SCientist research partnerships for Integrated

agrrculture aquaculture In H van der Mheen Report of the Technrcal Consultation on

ExtenSion Methods for Smallholder Fish Farming In Southern Africa ALCOM Report

21 FAO, Rome

Chlkafumbwa, FJ K Fish ponds and the environment CURE (Coordination Unit for the Rehabdlta

tlon of the EnVironment) Newsletter 2(3) 8

Chlkafumbwa, FJ K The use of napier (Penmsefum purpureum) and maize (Zea mays) bran as low

cost t,lapla aquaculture Inputs Aquaculture 146 101 107

Chlkafumb.wa, FJ K Use of terrestnal plants In aquaculture In Mala~I, p 175 182 In R S V

Pullin, J Lazard, M Legendre, J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third

International Symposium on Tdapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Chlmatlro, S K and B A Costa Pierce Waste vegetable leaves as feeds for juvenrle Oreochromls

shtranusand Ttlapla renda/h, grown together or separately, p 183 192 In R S V Pullin,

J Lazard, M Legendre, J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International

Symposium on Tllapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Costa Pierce, B A Effects of substrate and water quality on seasonal fry production by Tt/apla

renda/It In tanks, p 280 289 In R S V Pullin, J Lazard, M Legendre, J B Amon

Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International Symposium on Tdapla In Aquaculture

ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Crouch, Band M Preln External review SCALE ProJect, Southeast ASian Outreach, Phnom

Penh

Dalsgaard, J PT An ecological modeling approach towards the determination of sustalnabdlty In

farming systems Royal Vetennary and Agricultural Unrverslty, Copenhagen Ph D dlsser

tatlon

Jamu, D M and 0 V MSlska Liming of fishponds In Mala~1 a comparative study of limed and

unlimed ponds, p 54 61 In R S V Pullin, J Lazard, M Legendre, J B Amon Kothlas

and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International Symposium on Tllapla In Aquaculture ICLARM

Conf Proc 41

Kaunda E K Stock manipulation In farmed triapias In MalaWI, p 62 69 In R S V Pullin, J

Lazard, M Legendre, J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International

Symposium on Tllapla In Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Lightfoot, C , S Feldman and Z Abedln Hogar familiar, agroecoslstema y maneJo de recursos

rurales un manual para ampllar los conceptos que se tlenen de genero y sistemas de

producclon Traducldo al castellano por Edith Fernandez Baea ICLARM Educ Ser 12

BARI/ICLARM, Manda

Lightfoot, C ,M Preln and J K Oforl AnalytICal framework for rethinking aquaculture develop

ment for smallholder farmers, p 4 10 In M Preln, J K Ofon and C Lightfoot (eds )

Research for the future development of aquaculture In Ghana ICLARM Conf Proc 42- ICLARM
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Lightfoot C M Preln and J K Ofon Potential Impact of Integrated agnculture aquaculture sys

tems on sustainable farming p 51 56 In M Preln J K Ofon and C Lightfoot (eds )

Research for the future development of aquaculture In Ghana ICLARM Conf Proc 42

Malr G C and A A van Dam The effect of sex ratio at stockmg on growth and recruitment In Nde

tdapla (Oreochromls mlotlcus L ) ponds p 100 187 In R S V Pullin J Lazard, M

Legendre and J B Amon Kothlas (eds ) The Third International Symposium on Tdapl<1 In

Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Maluwa A 0 and M W DICkson Comparison of the growth of Oreochromls karongae and 0
shtranus In fishponds In MalawI, p 108 111 In R S V Pullin, J Lazard, M Legendre,

J B Amon Kothlas and D Pauly (eds ) The Third International Symposium on Tdap[a In

Aquaculture ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Noble R P Wetland management In Malao"l a focal pOint for ecologically sound agnculture ILEIA

Newsletter 12(2) 9 11

Ofon J K and M Preln Rapid appraisal of low Input aquaculture systems, p 31 36 In M Preln,

J K Ofon and C Lightfoot (eds ) Research for the future development of aquaculture In

Ghana ICLARM Conf Proc 42

Ofon J K A Asamoah and M Preln Expenments for Integrated agnculture aquaculture system

deSign, p 37 41 In M PreIn J K Ofon and C Lightfoot (eds ) Research for the

future development of aquaculture In Ghana ICLARM Conf Proc 42

Preln, M Partnership between National AquatiC Research Systems and ICLARM In Afnca p 65

68 In J H Annala (ed ) Flshenes and aquaculture research planning with emphasIs on

Afncan needs ICLARM Conf Proc 50

Preln, M Wastewater fed aquaculture In Germany a summary, p 155 160 In J Staudenmann,

A Schonborn and C Etnler (eds ) Recycling the resource ecological englneenng for

wastewater treatment Env[ronmental Research Forum Vols 5 6 Transtec Publications

Zunch

Pre[n M and J K Ofon MapPing of 610 physical charactenstlcs of aquatic resource systems In

Ghana, p 11 19 In M Preln J K Ofor[ and C Lightfoot (eds ) Research for the

future development of aquaculture In Ghana ICLARM Conf Proc 42

Preln M and J K Ofon Past Inlt[atlves for promoting aquaculture In Ghana, p 1 3 In M Preln

J K Ofon and C L[ghtfoot (eds ) Research for the future development of aquaculture In

Ghana ICLARM Conf Proc 42

Preln, M ,C Lightfoot and R S V Pullin Farmer participatory research approaches towards agncul

ture aquaculture integration for sustainable management of natural resources p 173 184

In H J A Preuss (ed ) Agncultural research and sustainable management of natural re

sources Schnften des Zentrums fur reg[onale Entwlcklungsforschung der Justus Liebig

Unlversltat G,essen Volume 66 Lit Verlag Munster Germany

Preln M C Lightfoot and J K Ofon PartlZlpatlve Methoden In der Elnfuhrung von semi Intens[ven

Aquakultursystemen In die tradltlonelle Ressourcenbewlrtschaftung neue Ansatze p 54

77 In H Franzen and H Rosenthal (eds ) Integnerte Aquakultur Perspektlven fur die

entwlcklungspol[tlsche Zusammenarbelt ATSAF/GTZ/BMZ Bonn

Preln M J K Ofon and C Lightfoot Editors Research for the future development of aquaculture

In Ghana ICLARM Conf Proc 42 94 p

van Dam A A E A HUisman and R Rabblnge Simulation of food and oxygen I[mltat[ons on the

growth of Nile tdapla Oreochromls mlotlcus L In fishponds Aquaculture Research
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Coastal Aquaculture and Stock Assessment Program

Friedman, K and J Bell Effects of different substrata and protective mesh bags on collection of spat

of the pearl oysters, Pmctada margarttlfera (Llnnaeus, 1758) and Pmctada maculata (Gould

1850) Journal of Shellfish Research 15 535 541

Frredman, K, J Bell, M Gervls and G Tlroba Progress of research on the potential of farming

blackllp pearl oysters In Solomon Islands Pearl Oyster Information Bulletin South Pacific

Commission 9 11 13

Policy Research and Impact Assessment Program

International Partnerships and Networks Program

Information and Training Program

Temprosa, R M GUide to ICLARM information resources and serVices ICLARM, Manila, 12 p

Temprosa, R M Ian R Smith Memorial Library and Documentation Center ALAP Notes Aprrl!

June 4

Temprosa, R M Ian R Smith Memorral Library and Documentation Center (ICLARM) 0 Bull

IAALD 41 (3/4) 253 254

Temprosa R M Ian R Smith Memorral Library and Documentation Center (brochure) ICLARM,

Manda

ICLARM

H B T Gjedrem T M Thien and N Cong Dan Breeding plan for Nde tllapla (Oreochromls

f1/!obcus) In Vietnam Combined multi trait selection INGA Report No 1 Manda 10 p

H B T Gjedrem, T M Thien and N Cong Dan Breeding plan for mrrgal (Grrhmus

mflgala) In Vietnam Combined multi trait selection INGA Report No 2 Manda 12 p

Bentsen

Bentsen

Ahmed M and TS Tana Management of freshwater capture Fisheries of Cambodia Issues and

approaches Naga, ICLARM 0 19 (1) 16 19

Cruz Trrnldad, A Editor Valuation of tropical coastal resources theory and applICation of linear

programming ICLARM Stud Rev 25, 108 p

Garces A L Report on the status of the SOCioeconomiC component of the WES proJect WES

Newsletter No 3 CanTho University

PIdo, M D , R S Pomeroy, M B Carlos and L R Garces A handbook for rapid appraisal of

flsherres management systems (version 1) ICLARM Educ Ser 16, 85 p

Pomeroy, R S, Editor Fisheries co management news Issues 3 & 4, February/July 1996 ICLARM

Manda

Pomeroy, R S and A Cruz Trinidad Socioeconomic aspects of artlsanal flsherres In ASia, p 239

258 In S S De Sdva (ed ) Perspectives In ASian flsherres ASian Flsherres Society, Ma

nda

Pomeroy, R S and A L Garces Socioeconomic component of the prOject Support to Strengthening

the Institutional Capacity for Sustainable Aquaculture Development In the Southern Part of

Vietnam WES Newsletter No 1 2, CanTho University

-



Bentsen, H B , T Gledrem and N Van Hao Breeding plan for sdver barb (PuntlUs gomonotus) In

Vietnam Individual (mass) selection to Improve growth rate INGA Report No 3,

Manda, 12 p

Dey M M, M N I Mlah, B A A Mustaf, and M Hossain Rice production constraints In

Bangladesh Implications for future research priOrities, p 179 192 (ch 11) In R E

Evenson, R W Herdt and M Hossain (eds ), RICe research In ASia CAB Interna

tlonal, Wallingford, UK

Dey, M M and H K Upadhyaya Yield loss due to drought, cold and submergence In ASia, p

291 304 (ch 18) In R E Evenson, R W Herdt and M Hossain (eds ) Rice research

In ASia CAB International, Wallingford, UK

Evenson R E ,M M Dey and M Hossain RICe research priOrities an application, p 347 392

(ch 22) In R E Evenson, R W Herdt and M Hossain (eds ) Rice research In ASia

CAB International, Wallingford UK

Gupta, M V, M Akhteruzzaman, A H M Kohlnoor and M S Shah 1996 Nde tdapla

(Oreochromls mlotlcus) culture In small waterbod,es under different feeding and fertd,za

tlon regimes p 500 504 In R S V Pullin, J Lazard M Legendre, J B Amon Koth,as

and D Pauly (eds) The Third International Symposium on Tdapla In Aquaculture

ICLARM Conf Proc 41

Gupta M V, M A Rahman, M A Mazd and J D Sollows Integrated agriculture aquaculture

a way for food security for small farmers and better resource management and enVironment,

p 165 176 In International Symposium on Food Security and Innovations Successes

and Lesson Learned University of Hohenhelm, Germany

Gupta M V A method for assessment of adoption and Impact of aquaculture technologies on rural

households In Bangladesh, p 19 21 In International Symposium on Food Security and

Innovations Successes and Lesson Learned University of Hohenhelm Germany

Kohlnoor A H M D A Jahan, M G Hussain and M V Gupta Involvement of women In

aquaculture, p 47 52 In Success stories of women In agriculture, proceedings of a

National Workshop on Case Studies Bangladesh Agricultural Research Council Dhaka

Office of the Director General

Wdllams, M J Issues In international aquatic research towards food security Agricultural SCience,

March April 1996 32 34

Wdl,ams M J Conference report Fourth ASian Fisheries Forum ReViews In Fish Biology and Fish

erles 6 248 250

Wdl,ams M J The tranSition In the contribution of liVing aquatic resources to food security IFPRI

Food Agriculture and the EnVIronment D,scuss,on Paper No 13 41 p (An edited

version also p 1 58 In S S De Sdva (ed ) Perspectives In ASian Fisheries ASian

Fisheries Society, Manda)
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Papers Presented

ICLARM staff delivered a number of papers and addresses at conferences or workshops during

1996 Listed below are the titles of the papers, the responsible author(s) and the names locations

and dates of the forums In which they were presented

BiodiverSity and Genetic Resources Program

BiodiverSity databases (Written by R Froese presented by J McManus) Workshop on Multlme

dla Database Systems and BiodiverSity Taipei, Taiwan, 22 27 February

Conservation of genetic resources for aquaculture (R S V Pullin) Second World Fisheries Congress

Brisbane, Australia 28 July 2 August

A data rich approach to assess biodiverSity (R Froese) Danish Cooperation on EnVironment and

Development (DANCED) International Meeting on BiodiverSity Chiang Ral, Tharland,

1 4 1 9 January

Documenting fish genetic resources In FlshBase (C V Casal) Fourth National Genetics Symposium

IRRI Los Banos, Phrllpplnes, 19 21 September

Domestication of crustaceans (R S V Pullin and M J Wdllams) Symposium on the Biology of
Crustacea University of Plymouth, UK 1 3 Aprd

FlshBase a database With key information on coral reef fishes (R Froese) Eighth International Coral

Reef Symposium Panama City Panama, 23 27 June

International concerns on fish biodiverSity and genetic resources management (R S V Pullin) Work

shop on the CharacterIZation of Ghanaian Trlapla Genetic Resources for Use In Fisheries

and Aquaculture Accra, Ghana 4 7 June

Manne biodiverSity data and information management an overview eM L D Palomares) Workshop

on Marine and Coastal BiodiverSity under the Convention on BiologICal DiverSity Subrc

Bay PhrllPPlnes, 24 25 October

A proposal fishes for the future towards the conservation and sustainable use of the world s

freshwater fishes (R Froese) IUCN Species Survival Commission Meeting Montreal,

Canada 11 1 4 October

Germplasm Enhancement and Breeding Program

Current trends In the ASian trlapla Industry and the Significance of genetically Improved trlapla breeds

(M M Dey and A E Eknath) Third INFOFISH AOUATECH International Confer

ence on Aquaculture Kuala Lumpur MalaYSia 25 27 September

Progress of Genetic Improvement of Farmed Tdapla (GIFT) Project (A E Eknath and B 0 Acosta)

Third Steering Committee Meeting of the International Network on Genetics In Aquacul

ture (INGA) Cairo Egypt 8 11 July

Keynote address (A E Eknath) Final Workshop of the India Norway Project on Selective Breeding

of Rohu Bhubaneswar India 12 24 March
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Aquatic Environments Program

Artificial reefs In the Philippines a poliCy analysIs (M Balgos) Eighth International Coral Reef

Symposium, Panama City, Panama, 26 30 June

Assessing the coral reefs of the world a multifaceted strategy (Keynote address by J W McManus)

NOAA / NOS Coral Reef Remote Sensing Workshop Florida USA, 17 1 8 Septem

ber

Assessing the health of coral reefs (J W McManus) EcologICal Summit 96 Copenhagen, Den

mark, 9 23 August

The biological signifICance of the Spratly Islands (J W McManus) John D and Catherine T

MacArthur Foundation World EnVIronment and Resources Program Grantees Meeting

Los Banos Philippines, 18 19 April

Clonal variation Within and between patches of the branching coral Anacropora puertogalerae

eVidence for both sexual and asexual reproduction (M C A Ablan) Eighth International

Coral Reef Symposium Balboa, Panama 26 30 June

Coastal fisheries and their management In developing ASian countries an overview of key challenges

and opportunities (G T Silvestre and D Pauly) Workshop on Sustainable ExplOitation

of Coastal Fish Stocks In ASia Manila, PhiliPPines 2 5 July

Coastal management training program In the Philippines (M C Balgos) UNEP/NETTLAP (Net

work for EnVironmental Training at Tertiary Level In ASia and the PaCIfiC) Conference on

ProfeSSional Development of EnVIronmental Managers Pattaya, Thailand 10 13 Decem

ber

Coral reef health and ReefBase (J W McManus) Seminar, Lamont Doherty Institute Columbia

University New York, USA, 31 July

Coral reef Information system on CD ROM (M Ablan) Floating Center for AquatiC SCience

Education Manila Philippines 8 1 2 July

Coral reef status around the world where are we and where do we go from here? (C MEakin,

J W McManus, M D Spalding and S C Jameson) Eighth International Coral Reef

Symposium Balboa, Panama, 26 30 June

Determining the effects of global changes on coral reefs a strategy for internatIonal research data

exchange and meta analYSIS (J W McManus) Workshop on Response of Coral Reefs to

Global Changes Tsukuba, Japan 4 6 March

Ecological community structure analySIS applications In fIsheries management (J W McManus)

Workshop on Sustainable ExplOitation of Coastal Fish Stocks In ASia Manila, Philip

pines 2 5 July

EPOMEX ICLARM International Workshop on Tropical Groupers and Snappers a summary of

workshop findings (D Pauly F ArregUin Sanchez J L Munro and M C Balgos)

Workshop on Sustainable Aquaculture and Coral Reef Fishes Sabah MalaYSia 4 7

December

Fisheries resources management challenges and opportUnities In the BIMP EAGA (G T Srlvestre)

Frrst Meeting of the Task Force on Resource Assessment Brunei Darussalam IndoneSia

MalaYSia the PhrllPPlnes (BIMP) East ASEAN Growth Area (EAGA) Working Group

on Fisheries Cooperation Quezon City Phrllpplnes 7 8 March

ICLARM s aquatic environments program and coral reef health a briefing (J W McManus) John

T and Catherine D MacArthur Foundation Headquarters Chicago, USA 6 August

ICLARM s aquatic enVironments program coral reef health and ReefBase (J W McManus) Semi

nar, NOAA Headquarters Vrrglnla, USA 29 July

ICLARM s aquatic enVironments program and ReefBase (J W McManus) USAID Virginia USA

-



29 July World Bank Headquarters, Washington DC, USA, 5 August Ministry of

Foreign Affairs The Hague, Netherlands 26 August

Impacts of flshrng on coral reef communities (J W McManus) SCOR Working Group 105 The

Impact of World Flshenes Harvests on the Stabdlty and Diversity of Manne Ecosystems

Initial Workshop Halifax Canada, 5 7 November

Integrated management of coastal flshenes lessons from initiatives In San Miguel Bay Phdlpplnes

(G T Sdvestre) 25th Session of the ASia Padlc Fishery Commission (APFIC) Seoul

Korea 1 5 24 October

The International Year of the Reef, global mOnltonng and ReefBase (J W McManus M Ablan and

S Vergara) International Year of the Reef 1997 Organizational Meetrng 12 Septem

ber

Introduction to ReefBase a global database on coral reefs and therr resources (Keynote address by

J W McManus) Workshop on Multimedia Database Systems and Biodiversity Taipei

Taiwan, 22 27 February

LIving aquatic resources and Irrigation some considerations (J W McManus) Workshop on Mul

tlple Uses of Water Washington DC, USA, 25 27 July, also SWIM Steerrng Commit

tee Meeting Washington DC, USA, 25 27 July

Mapper a mapping tool for database systems with coral reef applications (G U Coronado and

J W McManus) Eighth International Coral Reef Symposium Balboa Panama 26 30

June

The Phdlpplne manne aquanum fish Industry biodiversity assessment and prosoects for sustarnabdlty

(B ValleJo) Eighth International Coral Reef Symposium Balboa, Panama, 26 30 June

The proposed International Spratly Island Manne Park ecological considerations (J W McManus

and LAB Menez) Eighth International Coral Reef Symposium Balboa Panama 26

30 June

Raprd appraisal of the fisheries and coastal habitats of Ulugan Bay Puerto Prrncesa Palawan, Phdlp

pines (L Garces) Strategic Planning Workshop for Stakeholders of Ulugan Bay Area

Puerto Pnncesa City Phdlpplnes, 27 November

ReefBase (Demonstration by B ValleJO) Consultative Meeting on a Proposed ASEAN Aquanum

Society Jakarta IndoneSia, 13 20 October

ReefBase background and demonstration (J W McManus) International Coral Reef Initiative Western

Paclfrc I Eastern Afnca Regional Workshop Mahe, Seychelles, 25 29 March

ReefBase and the global analysIs of coral reef health (J W McManus) International Coral Reef

Initiative East ASia Seas Regional Workshop Ball IndoneSia, 18 22 March

ReefBase a global database of coral reefs and therr resources (J W McManus and M C A Ablan)

Eighth International Coral Reef Symposium Balboa, Panama 26 30 June

Tropical manne flshenes and the future of coral reefs (J W McManus) Eighth International Coral

Reef Symposium Balboa Panama, 26 30 June

Uses of coral reefs Issues and prospects (M C Balgos and S G Vergara) Workshop on Sustain

able Aquaculture and Coral Reef Fishes Sabah MalaYSia 4 7 December

Flsherres Resources Assessment and Management Program

A decade of progress In coral reef flshenes research 1986 1995 (J L Munro and N VC Polunln)

Eighth International Coral Reef Symposium Panama City, Panama, 23 29 June
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Marine ecosystem management an ode to Odum (V Christensen and D Pauly) International

Conference on Ecosystem Management for Sustainable Fisheries US National Research

Council, Ocean Studies Board Monterey, California USA, 19 23 February

Towards a generic trawl survey database management system (N Gayanllo and D Pauly) Work

shop on Sustainable Exploitation of Tropical Coastal Fish Stocks In ASia Manda, Philip

pines, 2 5 July

Integrated Aquaculture Agriculture Systems Program

Aquaculture and sustainable farming an Integrated approach to incorporating fish Into small scale

farming systems (M Preln) Workshop on Aquaculture Research and Sustainable Devel

opment In Inland and Coastal Regions In South East ASia Organized by the International

Foundation for SCience (IFS), Stockholm CanTho University, Vietnam 18 22 March

Coral reef food webs of the Maldives (R E Brummett) Seminar presented to the Faculty of Biology

Chancellor College University of Mala~I, 14 March

Demonstration of RESTORE program a research tool for natural resource management, monitoring

and evaluation (M Preln) IBSRAM PACIFICLAND Annual Meeting Traditional and

Introduced Sloping Land Technologies for the South PaCifiC Suva, FIJI 14 18 October

EnVironment and sustainable aquaculture In Africa (R E Brummett) World Aquaculture Society

Meeting, Bangkok Thailand 29 January

Farmer participatory research approaches towards agriculture aquaculture Integration for sustainable

management of natural resources (M Preln C Lightfoot and R S V Pullin) GTZ/CIAT

Workshop on Agricultural Research and Sustainable Management of Natural Resources

Call Colombia, 5 9 February

Farmer SCientist research partnerships for aquaculture development In subSaharan Africa (R E Brummett)

Seminar presented to the Faculty of the ASian Institute of Technology Bangkok Thadand

8 February

Fishes and crops the case for an Integrated approach (M Preln) IBSRAM PACIFICLAND An

nual Meeting Traditional and Introduced Sloping Land Technologies for the South Padlc

Suva, FIJI 1 4 1 8 October

ICLARM s research approach to technology transfer and Impact assessment (M Preln) IBSRAM

PACIFICLAND Annual Meeting Traditional and Introduced Sloping Land Technologies

for the South PaCifiC Suva, FIJI, 1 4 1 8 October

Indicators of sustainable farming systems a syntheSIS of Issues and approaches (H McArthur and

J PT Dalsgaard) Fourteenth International Symposium on Sustainable Farming Systems

BMICH sponsored by ASFRE/AFSA Colombo Sri Lanka 11 16 November

Integrated agriculture aquaculture a way for food security for small farmers and better resource

management and enVilonment eM V Gupta M A Rahman M A Mazld and J D

Sallows) International Symposium on Food Security and Innovations Successes and Les

sons Learned University of Hohenhelm Germany 11 1 3 March

Integrated aquaculture agriculture farming systems research Into their sustalnabdlty and biodiverSity In

the context of developing countries (M Preln) BiodiverSity and Sustainable Agriculture

Organized the Swedish SCientific Councd on Biological DiverSity Ekenas Sweden, 1 4

17 August

A method for assessment of adoption and Impact of aquaculture technologies on rural household In

Bangladesh (M V Gupta) International Symposium on Food Security and Innovations-



Successes and Lessons Learned University of Hohenhelm, Germany 11 13 March

Monltorrng and modeling agroecologlcal sustalnabrllty Indicators at the farm level (J PT Dalsgaard)

Fourteenth International Symposium on Sustamable Farming Systems, BMICH, sponsored

by ASFRE/AFSA Colombo, Srr Lanka, 11 16 November

On farm seed production of Grrhml/s reba for sustainable biodiverSity conservation (S D Trlpathl

M A Mazld and D Mazumder) National semmar on small mdlgenous species (SIS)

culture In Bangladesh Organized by RaJshahl University, Bangladesh, 12 December

Participatory methods In farming systems a syntheSIS of concepts and Issues (H McArthur) Four

teenth International Symposium on Sustamable Farmmg Systems, BMICH, sponsored by

ASFRE/AFSA Colombo, Sri Lanka, 11 16 November

Research development linkages (R E Brummett and B A Haight) Expert consultation on small scale

rural aquaculture FAO Rome, Italy, 28 31 May

The role of a fish pond In Integrated resource management (F J K Chlkafumbwa, R E Brummett and

R P Noble) CURE (Conservation Unit for the Rehabr/ltatlon of the Environment) Coor

dlnatlon Meeting Blantyre MalawI, 18 March

Tracking nutrrent flows In a multi enterprrse farming system With a mass balance model (ECOPATH)

(J PT Dalsgaard) Conference on Managing Sor/ Fertr/lty for Intensive Vegetable Produc

tlon Systems In ASia ASian Vegetable Research and Development Center (AVRDC)

Taman Taiwan 4 10 November

USing ECOPATH " to model analyze and compare the states of agroecologlcal systems (J PT

Dalsgaard and V Christensen) Ecological Summit 96 The Royal Danish School of Phar

macy, Copenhagen, Denmark, 1 9 23 August

Coastal Aquaculture and Stock Assessment Program

Can aquaculture help restore and sustain production of giant clams? (J D Bell A M Hart, T P

Foyle, M Gervls and I Lane) Second World Fisheries Congress Brrsbane, Australia 28

July 1 August

Development of giant clam farming In the Indo PaCifiC marketing and transport considerations (J D

Bell I Lane and A M Hart) Marketing and ShiPPing Live Aquatic Products 96 an

Industry conference and exhibition October 13 15

The status of marine fish larval rearing technology In Australia (S Battaglene and S Fielder) Interna

tlonal Symposium on Live Food Organisms and Environmental Control of Marine Animals

Nagasaki, Japan 1 4 September

Testing the use of a marrne protected area to restore and manage mvertebrate flsherres at the Arnavon

Islands Solomon Islands choice of methods and preliminary results (M P Lmcoln Smith

J D Bell and B D Mapstone) Eighth International Coral Reef Symposium Panama Crty

Panama 24 29 June

Transfer of technology on marrne ranching to small Island states (J D Bell) International Symposium

on Marrne Ranching In Ishikawa Kanazawa Japan, 1 3 16 September

PoliCy Research and Impact Assessment Program

Ecological Input costs In agricultural production process Issues In the agrrcultural development of

Northwest Cambodia (M Ahmed and N Shams) Designing Sustalnabr/lty Bur/ding

Partnerships among Society Business and the Environment The Fourth Biennial Conference

of International Society for Ecological Economics Boston USA 3 8 August
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ICLARM s activities In coastal management and valuation of natural resources (A C Trinidad)

Workshop on Coastal Management and Exploitation of Resources, Jakarta, 16 20 Sep

tember

Impact evaluation of community based coastal resource management prOjects In the Phrllpplnes (R S

Pomeroy, R B Pollnac, C D Predo and B M Katon) IUCN World Conservation Con

gress Montreal, Canada, 13 23 October

Preliminary report on the socioeconomic and eco technological baseline surveys (L X Sinh and A L

Garces) Fourth AdVisory Board Meeting of the WES Aquaculture Project Vungtau

City, Vietnam, 30 November

A review and evaluation of community based coastal resources management prOjects In the Philip

pines, 1984 1994 (M B Carlos and R S Pomeroy 1995) Regional Workshop on

Coastal Fisheries Management Based on Southeast ASian Experiences Some Important

Issues of Sustainable Management and Development Chiang Mal, Tharland, 19 22

November

Technical and SOCIO economic aspects of Integrated aquaculture systems In CanTho and Vlnhlong

provinces (L X Sinh and A L Garces) Freshwater Aquaculture Research In the Mekong

River Delta to 2000 CanTho University, Vietnam, 10 11 July

International Partnerships and Networks Program

Objectives and methodology followed for DEGITA (M M Dey) The Third Committee Meeting

of the International Network on Genetics In Aquaculture (INGA) Cairo, Egypt, 8 11

July

SyntheSIS of experimental data conducted In the DEGITA Project (M M Dey) The Third Commit

tee Meeting of the International Network on Genetics In Aquaculture (INGA) Cairo

Egypt, 8 11 July

Office of the Director General

African aquaculture a mYriad of posslbrlltles (M J Wrillams) World Aquaculture 96 World

Aquaculture Society Bangkok Tharland, 29 January 2 February

Application of genetics to aquaculture challenges, strategies and prinCiples (The paper given by

M J Williams was prepared largely by A E Eknath) Address to the ASian Fisheries

Society Indian Branch Cochln India 24 November

Education for aquatic resource management In developing countries (Keynote address by M J

Wrillams) International Conference on Re Inventing Fisheries Management University of

British Columbia, Canada 1 23 February

Flshe[les and conservation a roadmap for the future (Keynote address by M J Wrlliams) IUCN

Marine and Coastal Workshop Montreal Canada 17 19 October

Women In fisheries (Keynote address by M J Williams) Seminar on Women In Fisheries In Indo

China Countries Phnom Penh Cambodia 6 8 March

-



Many of ICLARM s programs Involve training seminars or courses to exchange or Impart knowledge

or skrlls of new expenmental, or more appropnate technologies and practices ICLARM staff mem

bers are occasionally called upon to provide students, partners, collaborators or specialized groups

with technical expertise In a supervisory advisory or consultative role Both types of activities are

Included In thiS section

BIOdiverSity and Genetic Resources Program

AdVisory Services

Dr R Pullin served In 1996 as chairperson for the Systemwide Genetic Resources Program

(SGRP) s InterCenter Working Group on Genetic Resources, and made VISitS In March and

October to help coordinate SGRP plans and activities The Program provided a fact sheet for

the SGRP information folder prepared for the Fourth International Technical Conference on

Plant Genetic Resources, held In Leipzig In June

BGRP provided ICLARM s contrrbutlons to the Systemwide Information Network on Genetic

Resources (SINGER)

Dr Pullin participated In the Second Meeting of the Convention on Biological Diversity s SubSidiary

Body on SCientific, Technical and Technological AdVice, 2 6 September In Montreal, Canada

Germplasm Enhancement and Breeding Program

Training

Ms R Velasco worked with representatives from the PhrllPPlne Bureau of Flshenes and AquatiC

Resources (BFAR) to provide on site training on GIFT (Genetic Improvement of Farmed Trlapla)

technologies and practices from 22 29 May In selected areas of Mrndanao, Phrllpprnes The partici

pants were local fish farmers and Department of Agrrculture offiCials

AdVisory Services

Dr A Eknath provided gUidance to a FAC/CLSU graduate student, Ms F Longalong on her theSIS

entitled Response to selection for low and high occurrence of sexual maturation at a fixed age In Nile

tria pia (0 m/otlcus)

AquatIC EnVironments Program

Tramlng

As part of AEP s prOject to develop a broad based coastal management training program for the

Phrl'PPlnes a pilot course with 1 5 participants took place In Bollnao, Pangaslnan at the University

of the Phillpprnes Manne SCience Institute laboratory The course was given five times InvolVing a

total of 102 participants mostly from the Vlsayas and Mindanao The participants were mid level

staff working In the coastal management programs of the Department of Agnculture (12%) DENR

(24%) local government units (21 %) academic Instttutions (22%), NGOs (13%) and others

The five sessions were financially supported by the Rockefeller Brothers Fund The Vlsayas State

College of Agnculture GTZ Tropical Ecology Program and the USAID Coastal Resources Manage

ment Program co sponsored the last two sessions
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Fisheries Resources Assessment and Management Program

Training

Mr Gayando trained eight representatives from the National Aquatic Resources Agency (NARA)

Sri Lanka In the use of FISAT software a fisheries stock assessment package developed JOintly

by ICLARM and FAO Manda Phdlpplnes 4 15 March

Mr Gayando gave a short course on the use of FISAT to eight fisheries SCientists from various

countries at the University Catollca del Valparaiso In Chile (9 13 September) and to over 30

researchers from the Instltuto del Mar de Peruano In Callao Peru (16 20 September)

A representative from NARA spent a month at ICLARM In Manila with program staff learning

how to develop a low level geographic information system (GIS) which will be an Important

component of TrawlBase, slated for development In 1997

Drs V Christensen and D Pauly served as trainers for 40 participants at the international course

entitled ECOPATH Modeling and Management of Aquatic Ecosystems CICIMAR, La

Paz, Baja California Sur, MexIco 21 26 October

Integrated Aquaculture Agriculture Systems Program

Training

Under the framework of a collaborative research activity with the Community Forestry Project

QUlrino (CFPQ/GTZ/DENR) and ICLARM s prOject on sustalnabJllty indicators for Inte

grated aquaculture systems (BMZ/GTZ), four 1 day training workshops were held with 37

Philippine farmers on low external Input IAA (Integrated aquaculture agriculture) technology

This activity IS a component of the RESTORE farmer participatory process to study the Impact

of IAA on smallholder farms

A 10 day study tour for four Bangladeshi SCientists and policy makers was organized In Malay

sla PhiliPPines and Thailand An 18 day tour was also organized for a senior administrator to

VISit India to study the latest developments In the fisheries sector

The following training programs were organized dUring 1996 under the Research for

Development of Sustainable Aquaculture Technologies In Bangladesh project (USAID)

1 Aquaculture and Integrated farming systems management For NGOs ~nd

extension officers Three sessions Total of 44 participants

2 Hatchery and nursery management of carps and catfishes For NGOs and

extension workers Two sessions Total of 36 participants

3 Low co t aquaculture practices For farmer research partner One course with 28

participants

4 Integrated aquaculture agriculture practices For farmer research partners Two

courses Total of 59 participants

5 No feed no fertilizers low cost aquaculture technologies For farmer research

partners Two courses Total of 61 participants

6 Improved fish culture management practices One course involving 20 farmers and

one involving 25 NGOs/extenslon workers

7 Aquaculture research and development activities In Malaysia PhiliPPines and

Thailand One course Four senior government administrators and SCientists

participated

8 Quality fish seed production Two courses each attended by 42 hatchery and

nursery operators

9 Aquaculture research and development activities In India One senior government

offiCial participated -



Advisory Services

Dr M Preln served as Guest Editor for the July Issue of the ILEIA Newsletter (v 12)

MalawI Research Site Four students from the University of MalawI (Bunda and Chancellor

campuses) were hosted at the Domasl National Aquaculture Center for their theSIS work which

was supported and supervised ICLARM supported azolla tdapla systems at research at Domasl

by two Department of Fisheries research staff The library has been restaffed and can now

prOVide Improved services to researchers such as computerized literature databases of all

holdings In Domasl and at ICLARM Headquarters In Manila FlshBase IS available to users on

CD ROM

Dr PreIn served as external reviewer of the SCALE (SAO Cambodia Integrated Aquaculture

on Low Expenditure) Project of Southeast ASian Outreach, Phnom Penh, Cambodia, 4 16

March

Policy Research and Impact Assessment Program

Tratmng
A one month training for a staff member of the Department of Fisheries Cambodia was conducted

under the superVISion of Dr M Ahmed She was trained on database management and data analysIs

for Cambodia s freshwater capture fisheries

AdVisory Services

Dr M Ahmed aSSISted the Department of Fisheries In Thailand and the Department of Livestock

and Fisheries In Laos In survey planning for socioeconomic studies under the Mekong River

CommiSSion supported Project for Management of Reservoir Fisheries In the Mekong Basin 3

11 October 1996

Dr Ahmed aSSisted the Department of Fisheries In Cambodia In the pre appraisal and finalization

of the prOject document for Phase 1/ of the Management of Freshwater Capture Fisheries Project

to be supported by DANIDA and Mekong River CommiSSion 2 17 December 1996

Dr R Pomeroy aSSISted In the preparation of a constitution for the ASian Fisheries SOCial SCience

Research Network (AFSSRN) under the ASian Fisheries Society Preparation was also under

taken for developing a web page
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Workshops/Conferences/Semrnars Conducted

Events In which ICLARM played a central role In organiZing, hosting or sponsoring are listed here

Germplasm Enhancement and Breeding Program

DEGITA (Dissemination and Evaluation of Genetically Improved Tdapla In ASia) Training Workshop

(A Eknath, C Janagap) Los Banos Phdlpplnes, 12 30 March

Inauguration Meeting of the research facilities for the Center for Applied Fish Breeding and Genetics

Research and Launching of GIFT Foundation International (A Eknath, B Acosta, M P

de Vera, R Velasco H Bolivar, F RIUS, P Vlrly, C Federlgan, F Lopez, N Cabrera)

Nueva ECIJa, Phdlpplnes, 9 October

Strategic Planning Workshop for the GIFT Foundation (A Eknath, M P de Vera, R Velasco, H

Bolivar) Nueva EClJa, Phdlpplnes,1 6 December

Workshop on Finalization of the Phdlpplne National Tdapla Breeding Program (A Eknath, R Velasco)

Manda, PhdlPPlnes, 26 28 February

AquatiC EnVIronments Program

International Year of the Reef 1997 Organizational Meeting Manda Phdlpplnes 12 September

Workshop on Sustainable ExplOitation of Tropical Coastal Fish Stocks In ASia Manila, Phd,pplnes,

2 5 July

Integrated Aquaculture Agriculture Systems Program

IIRR/AIT/ICLARM IAASP workshop to plan for future collaboration (M Preln, M V Gupta

and R S V Pullin) 30 October

Policy Research and Impact Assessment Program

Mdkflsh Broodstock Development Program Project meeting With ICLARM, BFAR, SEAFDEC staff

(A C Trinidad, F Torres, Jr) Manda, Phdlpplnes, 23 February

International Partnerships and Networks Program

The Third Steering Committee Meeting, International Network on Genetics In Aquaculture INGA

(M V Gupta, M M Dey A Eknath B Acosta) Cairo Egypt 8 11 July

Workshop on ICLARM Philippine Institutional Research Collaboration (M V Gupta M Dey

N D Macawarls) Manila, PhiliPPines 8 November

-



Selected MedIa Coverage

In 1996 ICLARM made news around the world This section provides a sampling of the wide

variety of media sources that called attention to the Center s objectives and achievements over the

past year

PRINT MEDIA

Ahram CLAR selected to be a branch for ICLARM (In Arabc) 13 July 1996

Ahram Developing fish production (In Arabic) 9 July 1996

Akhbar New kinds of Nile tilapia (In Arabic) 9 July 1996

Aquaculture Europe New compact d,scs on aquatIc Itterature 20(3) 22 1996

Aquaculture News Research, grants, success (22) 9 1996

Aquanews InternatIonal Centers Week offers opportunIty for collaboralton B Goetze 11 (1)

8 1996

ASIan DIVer Trtdacna S C Chua 5(3) 54 1996

ASTINFO Newsletter Coral reef, fish database now In CD 11 (3) 3 1996

ATSAFGrcular Zusammenarbelt der CGIAR mIt Osteuropa/Zentralaslen (46) 13 14 1996

A TSAF Grcular IClARM, Neuer Forschungsstandort In Agypten (46) 13 1996

A TSAF Grcu/ar ATSAF Bertcht uber die Besuche der General d,rektoren von CIMMYT, C1ATt

ICARDA und ICLARM In Deutschland (47) 2 3 1996

Austrahan Marme SCience Bulletm Species 2000 t indeXing the world's known speCies (134)

13 1996

Australian Manne SCIence Bulletm 1997 Internaltonal Year of the Reef (1 36) 22 1996

Beche de mer InformafJon Bulletm Correspondence from Beche de mer special Interest group

members J Bell (8) 45 1996

Busmess~rld Expert offers solutIons to fish supply problems 5 August 1996 2

Busmess~rld Frankenstein s GIFT K C Yao 15 October 1996 5

Catch and Culture SOCIO economIst Dr Mahfuzuddln Ahmed 1(3) 9 1996

Catch and Culture Women In f,shertes 1(4) 1 5 1996

CGIAR News Danlda the exemplary donor E B Gonzalez and C I Guevara 3 (2) 7 1996

Dillly Informer Future fish to be found In farms, managed f,sheries A Magudas 1 October 1996

4

EC hshenes CooperatIon Bulletm Indexing the world's known speclest Species 2000 9( 1)

28 1996

EC hshenes CooperatIon Bulletm InformatIon services available from ICLARM 9(1) 29

1996

EC hshenes CooperatIon Bulletm InternatIonal Year of the Reef 1997 9(3) 23 24 1996

Entwlcklungpollflsche Informatlonen Refs F,sch Systeme setzen slch durch (11) 24 1996

FAG Aquaculture Newsletter InternatIonal Expert Meetings on the Use of ChemICals In Aqua

culture (12) 19 1996

FFA News D,gest IndeXing the world s known speCies, SpecIes 2000 (2) 5 1996

FFA News D,gest I(LARM farmers export 25t OOO live giant clams (3) 12 1996

hshmg Ch,mes (IFA pOised to revolutiOnise rohu qualtty In f,sh culture 16(2) 6 1996

hshmg Ch,mes ICAR and ICLARM, SCientifiC and technical co operation V D Singh 16(5)

20 1996

hshmg Ch,mes 1997 IS InternatIOnal Year of the Reef 16(8) 41 1996

hshenes EconomIcs Newsletter FlshBase 96 (42) IX 1996- ICLARM
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fishenes Newsletter DEGITA training workshop In Los Banos Bangladesh Fisheries Research

Institute 4(2/3) 4 1996

fishenes Newsletter VIsitors Board of Trustees of ICLARM Bangladesh Fisheries Research Instl

tute4(1) 8 1996

fisheries How possible non dues revenues can forward the AFS mission P Brouha 21 (11) 4

5 1996

Globe & Mafl Canada working to keep cod, other fish off endangered list K Unland 19

October 1996 A 1 4

Gomhona USing englneenng genetics In developing fishes (In Arabic) 9 July 1996

IAMSLlC Newsletter FlshBase (58) 12 1996

IAMSLlC Newsletter Ian R Smith Memonal Library and Documentation Center (58) 14 15

1996

ICES/ClEM Information Bookends Daniel Pauly s wide ranging mind and work In his book On

the sex of fish and the gender of sCientists J Rice (28) 15 1996

ILEIA Newsletter Organizations ICLARM 12(2) 29 1996

INFOFISH International Indexing the world s known species Species 2000 (3) 7 1996

INFOFlSH Internatfona/ Asia s double aquaculture event, INFOFISH AQUATECH 96 &

Aquaculture ASia 96 (3) 11 1996

INFOFISH InternafJonal ElectrOniC fish encyclopaedia update (4) 43 44 1996

INFOFISH Internatfonal Women In flshenes In Indo China countnes M C Nandeesha (6)

1521 1996

Intercoast Network Panama Coral Reef Symposium stresses sCience and management (27) 20

21 1996

Isyu Year of the Reef EB Patanne 6 November 1996 13

Malaya Record of CrISIS A Alcala 1 November 1996 12

Malaya Food secunty and flshenes A Alcala 27 September 1996 16

Manr/a Bulletm Tllapla IS our best bet for suffiCiency In fish Z B Sarlan 2 August 1996 44

Manr/a Bulletm Foundation to assure super tllapla availability Z B Sarlan 4 October 1996

C2

Manr/a Bulletm Supertilapla growth In forum C Chavez 21 November 1996 12

Manr/a Bulletm International Year of the Reef 8 December 1996 48

Manr/a Chronrcle Lahar devastated ponds eyed for massive tilapla culture 30 July 1996 13

Manr/a Times Foundation for super fish soon to be launched 5 October 1996 14

Manr/a Times Aquaculture to save Prnoys from hunger A Galang 14 October 1996 3

Morgenavfsen Jyllands Posten We can learn from nce farmers (In Danish) J PT Dalsgaard 26

May 1996

NACA Newsletter Indo China seminar on women In flshenes noted for new researches 13(1)

4 5 1996

NACA Newsletter Fourth Indian Flshenes Forum focuses on food secunty and sustaining aquac

ulture growth D Kumar 13 (4) 4 1996

NACA Newsletter PoliCy and planning, manne fish health, environment and nce fish system

mark year end training and study tour programmes X W Zhou 13 (4) 7 1996

NewSCIentfstBluerevolutionanes B Holmes 152(2059) 3236 1996

Outlook on Agnculture Genetic techniques may help tackle dWindling fish stocks 25(3) 202

203 1996

PCAMRD ~ves CD reef databases available on Internet and CD 9(2) 5 6 1996

Phfltppme Dar/y InqUirer FilipinO fishpond farmers urged to breed super tilapla 12 September

1996 C7



Ph,l,pptne Da,fy InqUIrer Tilapla foundation to be launched 3 October 1996 86

Ph,f,pptne Da,fy InqUIrer BFAR, helping meet food secunty by the third millennium R L QUiason

and V Aquino Qurason 15 October 1996 D1, D6

Ph,f,pptne Da,fy InquIrer Super tllapla, a gift to the world 15 October 1996 D5 6

Ph,f,pptne Journal Three options to end row between small, commercIal flshers-BFAR 11

November 1996 7

Ph,f,pptne Journal BFAR holds hearings on commercIal fishing ban In Llngayen Gulf T Lapuz

Lardlzabal (ed) 20 December 1996 7

Ph,f,pptne Journal Coral reefs still RP s most valuable marine resource 24 March 1996 7

Ph,f,pptne Journal Novel Cebu program to serve as model for coastal resources management 24

October 1996 7

Ph,f,pptne Recorder Tllapla Foundation to be launched 21 27 October 1996

Ph,f,pptne Star Tilapla to emerge as super fish 28 May 1996 6

Ph,f,pptne Star Foundation for super tilapla R A Fernandez 29 September 1996 28

Ph,f,pptne Star Escudero cites need to sustain growth In agriculture sector M Galvez 14 Octo

ber 1996 6

Ph,f,pptne Star Dr Ambekar Eknath Inspects a tilapla breeder at BFAR FAC research station

20 October 1996 26

P,e Is It nce? IS It fish? no ItS superfarmlng D Tflbe 4 15 1996

Quarterly Bullettn ofthe InternatIonalASSOCIatIon ofAgriculturalL,brarians and Documentallsts

Libraries from around the world, International Center for LIVing AquatiC Resources

Management (ICLARM) 41(3/4) 253254 1996

Quarterly Bullettn ofthe InternationalAssocIatIon ofAgriculturalL,brarians and Documenta/tsts

CGIAR centers now on the Internet 41 (3/4) 270 1996

SEAFDEC Newsletter TD library personnel meet their counterparts at ICLARM, Philippines

19(1) 111996

SEARCA D,ary Coastal resource management prOject update 25 (4) 1 5 1996

SPC fisheries Newsletter Fisheries management and marine conservation start to find common

ground, a report on the World Conservation Congress (79) 2 4 1996

Spore FlshBase 96 (66) 7 1996

TambuIJ A National Course on Integrated Coastal Management, PhiliPPines (1) 29 1996

Times P,cayune Overflshed waters running on empty J McQuaid 24 March 1996 5 8 9

Today Saving RP fIsheries from doom H D Tacro 21 May 1996 12, 15

Today New home for super tilapla set up 1 October 1996 15

Wallaceana FlshBase 96 (W7 8) 36 37 1996

WESNewsletter Institutional strengthening for sustainable aquaculture development In the Mekong

Delta L Varadr (1/2) 1 1996
WorldAquaculture FlshBase 96 27(3) 62 1996

NON-PRINT MEDIA COVERAGE

Modern Times Spezlal, Austnan Broadcasting Corporation Reiche Ernte Leere Teller H Leger

and G Meyer Vrdeocassette

New York Times InterView With John McManus for a teleVISIon show Makatr Crty

NHK RadiO Japan InterView With John McManus Conducted by Leny Hart and Clark Walnboden

23 January 1996

Pressburo Seegrund Interviews With ICLARM program leaders on ICLARM, coral reefs,

biodiverSity and genetics research Conducted by Martin Arnold and Urs Frtze Makatr

Crty 25 October 1996

- ICLARM
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 1996 AND 1995

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Trustees
International Center for LIving Aquatic

Resources Management Inc (ICLARM)
(A nonstock nonprofit organrzatlon)

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the International Center for
LIving Aquatic Resources Management Inc (a nonstock nonprofit organization) as at December 31
1996 and 1995 and the related statement of activities and of cash flows for the years then ended
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Center's management Our responsibility IS
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audits In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards In conformity
with international audit gUidelines as Issued by the International Federation of Accountants Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the finanCial statements are free of material misstatement An audit Includes examining on a test
basIs eVidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the frnanclal statements An audit also
Includes assessing the accounting prinCiples used and Significant estimates made by management
as well as evaluating the overall frnanclal statements presentation We believe that our audits
proVide a reasonable basIs for our opinion

As explained more fUlly In Note 2 the Center's finanCial statements are prepared on the basIs of
accounting practices prescnbed for International agricultural research centers seeking assistance
from the Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research Such practices conform With
generally accepted accounting prinCiples

In our opinion the finanCial statements referred to above present fairly the finanCial position of the
International Center for living Aquatic Resources Management Inc as at December 31 1996 and
1995 and ItS actiVities and ItS cash flows for the years then ended In conformity With generally
accepted accounting pnnclples

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basIc finanCial statements taken
as a whole The supplementary schedules of grant revenue restricted core and complementary
funding fixed assets capital expenditures capital fund movement funds In trust and details of
operating expenses for the years ended December 31 1996 and 1995 are presented for purposes of
additional analySIS and are not a required part of the basIc finanCial statements The Information In
the supplementary schedules has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of
the basIc financial statements and In our OpiniOn IS fairly stated In all matenal respects when
conSidered in relation to the basIc finanCial statements taken as a whole

Makatl City Philippines
February 28 1997

- ICLARM



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

Note 1996 1995
ASS E T S (U S Dollar 000)

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents Including the 1995 grant of

$2 826 from Japan for Abassa Egypt site refurbishment 2 3

Accounts receivable

Donors (Exhibit 1) 4

Employees

Others 5

Supplies Inventory 2

Prepaid expenses

Other current assets

Total current assets

FIXED ASSETS (Exhibits 3 3A and 3B)

Center owned

Property and equipment 2 b

Accumulated depreciation

In custody

Property and equipment

Total fixed assets net

Total assets

3332 4368

1413 905

178 84

436 313

30 23

191 47

743 44

6123 5784

1684 1 187

(825) (581)

859 606

1 149 826

2008 1432

8331 7216

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (continued)

(See accompanYing notes to financial statements)

ANNUAL REPORT 1996 -

4034 4829

453 336

205 87

5 58

205 100

200

4902 5410

2008 1432

765 188

425 191

3198 1 811

31 (5)

8331 7216

2

7

8
9

10

11

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended December 31

CORE TOTAL
Note Unrestncted Restncted Total Complementary 1996 1995

5762 3781 9543 31 9574 7776
361 361 361 141

6123 3781 9904 31 9935 7917

Total current liabilities

Tatal liabilities and net assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Donors (Exhibit 1)

Employees

Others

Funds In trust (Attachment II)

Accrued expenses

Reserve for contlngencles

Total net assets

CUMULATIVE TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT

NET ASSETS

Capital Invested In fixed assets (Exhibit 3 3A and 38)

Capital fund (Attachment 1)

Operating fund

Total revenues

REVENUES

Total grants

Other revenues
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (continuation) For the year ended December 31

CORE TOTAL

Note Unrestncted Restncted Total Complementary 1996 1995

OPERATING EXPENSES

Research programs 1805 3233 5038 31 5069 5035

Conferences and trainings 83 391 474 474 105

Information seNlces 791 157 948 948 488

General administration 2115 2115 2115 1131

General operations 2 625 625 625 830

Total operating expenses 5419 3781 9200 31 9231 7589

Recovery of Indirect costs (493) (493) (493) (434)

Total expenses 4926 3781 8707 31 8738 7155

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENSES 1197 1197 1197 762

ALLOCATED AS FOLLOWS

Operating fund 167 167 167 62

ReseNes 200 200 200 700

Capital fund 830 830 830

1197 1197 1197 762

MEMO ITEM

Operaling expenses By natural

claSSificatIOn

Personnel 2680 1943 4623 4623 3675

Operating costs 1558 1160 2718 31 2749 2336

Travel 444 678 1122 1122 1025

DepreCiation of fixed assets 244 244 244 119

Total operating expenses 4926 3781 8707 31 8738 7155

-

(See accompanying notes to financial statement~)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenues over expenses

Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenue over expenses to net cash

proVided by operating activities

DepreCiation
Disposals and wnte off of property and eqUipment

Changes In

Accounts receivable

Donors
Employees

Others
Supplies Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Accounts payable

Donors
Employees

Others
Funds In trust

Accnued expenses

Reserve for transportatIOn services

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities

December 31

1996 1995

1197 762

244 119

37

(508) 1247
(94) 109

(123) (21)

(7) (4)
(144) 42
(699) 44

(795) 4122

117 15

318 (722)

(53) 58

105 (22)

37

(442) 5823

ICLARM



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continuation)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
AcquIsition of property and eqUipment

Center owned
In custody

Funds Invested In property and eqUipment
Increase (decrease) In capital fund
Decrease In operating fund due 10 transfer of

funds reserve for transportation services and

pnor penod adjustment

Cumulative transla!Jon adjustment

Net cash used In Investing ac!Jvltles

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of note payable

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning

End

December 31

1996 1995

(497) (543)

(323) (201)

576 588

577 (304)

(963) (737)

36 105

(594) (1092)

(500)

(1036) 4231

4368 137

3332 4368

ANNUAL REPORT' 996

(See accompanying notes to financial statements)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 1996 AND 1995

Note 1 General

The International Center for LIVing AquatiC Resources Management Inc (ICLARM) was established
In 1976 by the Rockefeller Foundallon and formally Incorporated under the laws of the Republic of
the Philippines on January 20 1977 as a nonstock phllantrophlc and nonprofit corporation The
Center IS also an autonomous Internallonal sClentlhc and technical research center with a broad
mandate to conduct and catalyze strategic research on all aspects of aquatic resources
rnanagement which alms to Improve prodUCtiVity of culture and capture fisheries and small scale
rural subSistence and market fisheries It also publishes findings and recommendations and holds
conferences to diSCUSS current problems related to aquatic resources

ICLARM IS a member of the Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research (CGIAR) an
Informal but highly successful aSSOCiation of public and private sector donors supporting International
agncultural research centers

On November 28 1995 an Internallonal agreement that recognizes the Center as an International
organizational was Signed The agreement grants the Center JUridical status to enable It to more
effectively continue ItS International efforts and actiVities In liVing aquatic resources management

On October 7 1996 Resolullon No 62 was adopted by the Philippine Senate and grants the Center
certain privileges and Immunities which Include the fOllOWing exemptions

a exemption from payment of all taxes which extend to goods Imported by the Center Intended for
ItS offiCial use

b exemption from payment of gift tax all gifts bequests contributions and donations to the Center
are conSidered allowable deductions for determining the Income tax of the donor

c exemption from payment of all customs duties and related leVies of any kind

d exemption from payment of Income tax of non FIlipino citizens servln9 on the technical and
SCientific staff on salaries and stipends In foreign currency received solely from and by reason of
service rendered to the Center

e exemption from prohibitions and restrictions on the Import or export of articles Intended for Its
offiCial use

Note 2 BaSIS of financial statement presentation and Significant accounting poliCies

The accompanying hnanclal statements expressed In US dollars are prepared on the baSIS of
accounling practices preSCribed for International agricultural research centers by CGIAR The
CGIAR prescnbed accounting practices conform With generally accepted accounting pnnclples
A summary of the Centers slgmflcant accounting poliCies IS set forth to faCIlitate the understanding of
data presented In the financial statements -



Cash eqUivalents Cash equivalents are shbrt term highly liquid Investments that are readily
convertible to known amount of cash with anginal matuntles of three months or less

Foreign currency transactions Philippine peso and other foreign currency denominated transactions
are translated to US dollars for reporting purposes at standard bookkeeping rates which approximate
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transaction Exchange differences resulting from
a) the collection of foreign currency denominated receivables b) the settlement of foreign currency
obligations and c) translation of balances of foreign currency denominated accounts at rates
different from which they were onglnally booked are credited/charged to operations Exchange
differences resulting from the translation of balances of foreign currency denominated accounts are
carned In the Cumulative Translation Adjustment accounts

Revenue Revenue from unrestncted core grants are pledged on an annual baSIS and are
recognized In the accounts when there IS probability of collection In the year the grant IS pledged If
the pledge IS later Judged to be uncollectible It IS wntten off against revenue of the year In which It IS
determined to be uncollectible These grants are utilized to fund core programs and the regular
operating requirements of the Center

Restncted core grants and grants for complementary projects are recognized as Income when funds
are committed or received from the donors to the extent of expenses actually Incurred
Disbursements from these sources are limited by conditions embodied In agreements With donor
organizations Excess of grants received over expenses representing grants applicable to
succeeding years IS classified as Accounts Payable Donors In the Statement of Financial Position

Inventorv of matenals and supplies Inventory of matenals and supplies IS stated at cost uSing the
moving average method

Properly and eqUipment Land IS stated at historical cost Property and eqUipment are carned at
cost less accumulated depreCiation Replacement and renovation of assets and property are
financed through reserves funded pnmarlly by depreCiation DepreCiation of assets owned by the
Center IS computed on the straight line method over the follOWing estimated useful lives of the
related assets

1996 1995

Note 3 Cash and cash eqUivalents

Cash and cash eqUivalents at December 31 consist of

ICLARM

5
5 10

(US$ 000)

(702) 1 542

4034 2826

3332 4368

Estimated life In years

1996 1995
(US$ 000)

1413 905

1 268 441
145 417

47

Exhibit

Category descnptlon

Infrastructure and leasehold Improvements
Furnishing and equipment

Unrestncted

Restncted

Unrestncted core grants
Restncted core grants
Complementary project grants

Note 4 Accounts receivable donors

Accounts receivable from donors consist of unreleased balances of approved grants and expenses
advanced at December 31 and are classified as follows

Property and equipment acqUired through restncted and complementary funding are assets In
custody and remain the property of the respective donors until the eXpiration of the
agreemenVcontract after which diSPOSition IS to be deCided upon by the donors Such assets are
separately accounted for In the books as prescnbed by CGIAR

-



Note 5 Accounts receivable others

Other receivables at December 31 conSist of

1996 1995

Advances to projects
Others

(US$ 000)
367 228

69 85
436 313

Note 6 Property and eqUipment, leases

Property and equipment at December 31 are clasSIfied under the following accounts

1996 1995
(US$ 000)

Owned
Cost

Land
Infrastructure and leasehold
Furnishing and eqUipment

43
180

1 461
1684

75
1 112
1 187

Note 10 Funds In trust

Note 7 Accounts payable donors

Note 8 Accounts payable employees

581

38
543

826

266
560

606

1432

825
859

447
702

51
774

2008
1 149

Net book value
In custody

Infrastructure and leasehold
Furnishing and eqUipment

Accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure and leasehold
Furnishing and eqUipment

The Center together with the Freshwater Aquaculture Center of the Central Luzon State University
(CLSU FAC) and the National Freshwater Flshenes Training and Research Center and the Bureau
of Flshenes and Aquatic Resources IS constructmg research and breeding facIlities In MUriOL
Nueva EClja Estimated cost of the project IS $325 000

In the event of termmatlon of the activities of ICLARM all of Its physical assets shall become the
property of the University of the Philippines System If such system IS unable or unwilling to accept
all or any part of the physical assets these shall be disposed of exclusively for chantable
educational or religious purposes as may be determined by the Board of Trustees

Accounts payable to donors represent restncted grants received In advance and applicable to
succeeding penods

The Center leases ItS administrative offices renewable on a yearly basIs at the option of ICLARM It
also leases several housmg units for ItS Internationally Recruited Staff for a penod of up to 2 years
and renewable upon expiration under such terms and conditions acceptable to both parties Annual
rentals on these leases aggregate to $403 thousand (US$ 346 thousand In 1995) and the advance
deposits which the Center paid under tne terms of the covenng leases was shown as part of other
current assets In the statement of financial position

Accounts payable to employees consist of borrowmgs from the prOVident fund of the Center and
employees tax savmgs fund which bear Interest at 12°{, per annum

Note 9 Accounts payable others

Accounts payable others consist of liabilities to vanous suppliers of goods and services

Funds In trust pertain to funds provided by donors and managed by the Center With an ultimate
benefiCiary other than CGIAR centers

1!
,

~
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Note 11 Accrued expenses

Accruals at December 31 1996 consist of various liabilities to suppliers and benefits due to certain
employees

Note 12 ProvIdent fund (Staff Benefit Plan)

The Center maintains a non contributory proVident fund for the benefit of ItS NatIOnally RecrUited
Staff Monthly contribution to the fund IS computed at 10% 15% of the employees baSIC salary The
plan proVides lump sum payment to qualified employees/members upon separation from the
Center under certain conditions

Contributions to the fund amounted to US$99 thousand (1995 US$75 thousand)

Note 13 Changes In fund balance

Capital Invested Capital Operating
In fixed assets Fund Fund

(In US$OOO)
Balance December 31 1995 1 432 188 191
Additions (deductions) net 576 (253) 67
Excess of revenue over expenses 830 167

Balance December 31 1996 2008 765 425

Total

1 811
390
997

3198

-
Note Restricted core funding deSignated by contract with the donor to support specific prOject activities Unrestricted

core fundi ng may be allocated at the Center s dIScretion to support general operating costs programs or prOjects Comple

mentary funding IS deSignated by contract With the donor to support projects or actiVities that are outSide ICL "\RM s main

programs and runctlons

ICLARM

199619951994

Year

1993

Annual Fundmg 1992 . 1996

1992

10 000

o Complementary

9 000 • Restricted Core
II Unrestricted Core

8 000

7 000

6 000
0
0
?

5 000~

en
;:)

4 000

3 000

2 000

1000

a
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at a Glance

About the CGlAR

rue Consultative Group on International Agrrcultural Research (CGIAR) established In 1971

IS an Informal association of more than 50 public and private sector donors supporting 16 research

centers worldwide Through the research generated by ItS partiCipating centers, the CGIAR alms to

Improve food security In developing countries Critical elements of this miSSion Include the alleviation

of poverty protection of the natural environment promotion of sustainable agriculture and develop

ment, and emphasIs on people centered policies

Partners from national governmental agenCies, non governmental organizations, commumty groups

farmer associations academic research Institutions, the private sector and others contribute to deci

Slons on research policy and programs carried out by the CGIAR centers Members In the Consulta

tlve Group provide voluntary grants to support the research agenda, for which programs are pro

posed, evaluated and agreed annually The CGIAR s agenda IS designed to evolve over time Incor

poratlng SOCIal ecological economic as well as technical factors In developing new and more effective

agricultural technologies and policies The CGIAR In turn prOVides service to national agricultural

research systems In developing countries on tOPiCS ranging from forestry and livestock to food crops

Irrigation and aquatic resources

JClARM's Role In the CGJAR

ICLARM JOined the CGIAR In 1992 It IS the only CGIAR center with a mandate for living aquatic

resources The Importance of this unique responsibility IS underscored by the fact that

Water covers over 70% of the earth s surface,

About one billion people rely on fish as their primary source of animal protein

Nearly 50 mrilion people are Involved In small scale fisheries through catching, processing

and marketing, and

Fish production prOVides some 150 mrllion people with employment

ICLARM brings Issues and opportUnities concerning aquatic resources onto the CGIAR agenda and

Into the broader mternatlonal traditionally land based agricultural arena

ICLARM Initiates the Integration of aquaculture with agriculture for Improved productivity and hence

Increased food su pply

Through ItS knowledge of aquatic environments ICLARM helps complement the information needed

for agricultural research such as connections and interactions between aquatic and terrestrial ecosystems

ICLARM attends CGIAR meetings, participates In various system wide initiatives and Interacts

with the CGIAR sTechnical AdVISory Committee on technical reviews and other actiVities SpeCifically

In 1996 Dr Roger Pullin was elected to chair the System wide Genetic Resources Programme (SGRP) s

Intercenter Working Group on Genetic Resources (ICWG GR) ICLARM staff vIsited the SGRP

convening center tWice to coordinate actiVities such as publishing proceedings from the Consultation on

Fish Genetic Resources co sponsored by ICLARM In 1995 ICLARM helped bUild up the database

for the System wide Information Network on Genetic Resources (SINGER) A consultant at ICLARM

headquarters uSing data derived from translation of the GIFT prOject s database on triapia germplasm

collections and from the Coastal Aquaculture Centre s database on giant clams, Identified over 75 000

ex situ accession records to add to the SI NGER database In addition, ICLARM deVised a conceptual

framework for a database of In situ genetic resources In aquatic protected areas ICLARM also contrlb

uted to the development of the System wide Initiative on Water Management (SWIM) Intended to

seek methods to support aquatic biota uSing Irngated water and to the system wide Initiative on

common property management- ICLARM
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Our Headquarters

In October 1996, the Senate of the Republic of the Philippines passed Resolution No 02 This

measure confirmed a 1995 agreement signed by the Secretary of Foreign Affairs and ICLARM s

Director General that formally established ICLARM s full JUridical personality In the Philippines and

acknowledged the Manila office as ItS headquarters seat The resolution completes all legal require

ments granllng to ICLARM s staff trustees and consultants a range of Immunities designed to fadl

tate their official functions It also ensures tax exemption and other privileges accorded to Interna

tiona I, philanthropIc, non profit organizations

Our Board of Trustees

ICLARM s Board of Trustees IS responsible for the corporate governance of the Center including

setting the strategic direction establishing operational policies and mOnitoring the conduct of opera

tlons and achievement of objectives The Board delegates responsibility for executive management of

the Center to the Director General

In accordance with the ICLARM Constitution, the Board currently comprises SIX members

elected at large three members elected on the recommendation of the Consultative Group on Inter

national Agricultural Research (CGIAR) and two members ex offiCIO ICLARM s Director General

and the Secretary of the Department of Agriculture of the Government of the PhiliPPines In addl

tlon, a representative of the Food and Agllculture Organization, apPointed by ItS own Director

General serves as a non voting member Members of the 1996 Board and their affiliations are

listed below along with a record of their attendance at Board and committee meetings

Standing committees of the Board Include the Program Committee which oversees the Center s

sCientific program the Audit Committee, which aids the Board In discharging ItS fidUCiary responsl

bil,ty and the Nominating Committee which ensures an appropriate mix of expertise and experience

among trustees and for evaluating Board performance An Executive Committee acts when necessary

In the absence of the full Board and holds primary responsibility for overseeing the Center s finanCial

position and ItS human resources policies Ad hoc committees are apPointed from time to time to

undertake speCifiC responsibilities, for example the Headquarters Site Selection and FinanCing Com

mlttee

The Director General has a contract of employment with the Center, she IS remunerated on the

baSIS of a salary and benefits competitive with market rates Members of the Board of Trustees are

remunerated for Board service on the baSIS of meeting days

All Board member are expected to act with integrity and objectiVity and to maintain ethical

standards In accordance with the procedures code of conduct and Board mission statement con

talned In the ICLARM Constitution, and to adhere to the policies and procedures of the CGIAR

The firm of Joaquin Cunanan & Co a Member Firm of Price Waterhouse was apPointed as

the Center s external auditor In November, 1994, following a competitive tendellng process The

auditor s performance IS reviewed by the Audit Committee

- ICLARM



Board Members

John L Dillon, Chair

Department of Agricultural Economics and Busmess Management

University of New England Australia

Nyle Brady

Arizona, USA

Salvador Escudero III ex o/hC/o

Secretary Department of Agriculture

Government of the Phillppmes

Barry K Fdshle (until April 1996)

Australia

Masaru FU/lya

Towa SCience Company

Tokyo Japan

Serge Garcia

Director Fishery Resources and Environment DIVISion Fisheries Department

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAa)

Jacqueline McGlade

Professor Department of Biological SCiences

University of Warwick UK

ANNUAL REPORT 1996

Brrtha MIkkelsen

Sociologist and Human Resource Planner

COWl/Consult Denmark

Nyawlra Muthlga (Jomed April 1996)

Regional BiodiverSity Coordinator

Kenya Wildlife Service

Kurt Johannes Peters

Department of Animal Breedmg m the Tropics

Humboldt University of Berlm Germany

Benedict Satla

Programme Coordmator

International Development of Artlsanal Fisheries Benin

(now With Fisheries Department of FAa Rome)

Mohamed Shariff

Faculty of Veterinary Medicine and Animal SCience

Unlversltl Putra Malaysia

Meryl J Williams ex ofhclo

Director General ICLARM
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22
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2

1

2

1

1

1

2

2

1

2

2

* Ended term f** a ter April 199
Attended A I 1 6 meeting

*** F pn 996 meetlnIrst meeting was held In S gabsan observer, elected to beptem er 1996 mem ershlp at I
conc uSlon of meeting

John Driion EC PC A
Nyle Brad EC C, NCy ,AC, NC

Salvador E dscu ero EC AC

~rry Filshle* AC, NC

asaru FUJlya PC

Serge Garcia PC

Jacqueline McGlade PC

Bntha Mikkelsen NC

Nyawlra Muthlga ** PC

Kurt Peters PC AC

Ben Satla PC

Mohamed Shanff PC NC

Meryl Williams EC ~C

- ICLARM
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Our Staff

As of December 1996, ICLARM employed 227 regular staff from 12 countries Regular staff are

all individuals holding a full time budgeted position which IS required by management to meet

ICLARM s commitments and Board directives, and whose appOintment IS normally for more than

one year

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL

Meryl J Wdl,ams

josephine Hernandez

Angela Annabelle Ramirez

Director General

Executive ASSistant

Secretary

Daniel Pauly

Flordellza Bravo

Prrnclpal SCience Adviser

Clerk TYPist

OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR GENERAL

Peter Gardiner

Geraldine Gdera

Deputy Director General (Programs)

Secretary

INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS OFFICE

EXTERNAL RELATIONS OFFICE

CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION

ICLARM

External Relations Officer

External Relations ASSistant

ASSOCiate Director General

Personal ASSistant

Dlfector

Secretary

Marran Fuchs Carsch

Edeena Pike

Modadugu Gupta

Edna TUlco

Finance and Management Information Unit

Yolanda Songsong Manager

Arlene Balane Finance and General Acctg Supervisor

Ofelia Celestino Project Accounting Supervisor

LIZ Fernandez Financial Services Staff

MaruJa Ventura Senior General Accountant

Susan Bonetto

Rachel C Josue

-



Grace Marie Batarlo

Marlcar Narvacan

Ed,ta Artates

Samuel Adalia

Noel Vdlanueva

Ronabeth Icabandl

PrOjects Administration Unit
Paulino V Manese

R,zallna M Camanag

Lorna Lou T Arenas

Rosenne Funk

Nylofar Cel,a Gonzalez

Jennifer Navarro

Mdagros Irene Robel

Ma Clotdde G Alcantara

ProJect Accountant

Project Accountant

General Accountant

Programmer

Programmer

Accounting Clerk

Manager

Management Associate

Program ASSistant

Program Assistant

Program ASSistant

Program Assistant

Program Assistant

Secretary

BIODIVERSITY AND GENETIC RESOURCES PROGRAM

Administrative Services Unit
Edgardo N,torreda Manager

Ma Gemma Calderon Purchasing Assistant

Belen R Dagmd Communications Clerk

Adlelle Ma Corazon Teodoro Receptionist

Remedios Ugalde Receptionist/Admin Clerk

Domlnador Gomez Mechanic/Driver

Benjamin Bayron Driver

Fiorentino Paulino Driver

Pedroslno Catub,g Office Aide

Hermenegddo Magslno OffICe Aide

Emmanuel San Juan Office Aide
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Human Resources Unit
Ana Isabel L1aneza

Theresa Anne D,az

Angelica Dayapan

Computer Services Unit
Wilfredo Fontano

Allan Sesbreno

Romeo Olte

Roger S V Pullin

Ra Iner Froese

Jan Michael Vakdy

Manager

Compensation Specialist

Human Resources Clerk

Unit Manager/LAN Administrator

Assistant LAN Administrator

Computer Technician

Program Leader/Principal SCientist

Senior Research SCientist

Training Coordinator

-



Ma Lourdes D Palomares

Estel,ta Emdy Capull

Christine Marie Casal

Rodolfo Reyes Jr

Portia Bondla

Crispina Blnohlan

Pascual Ita Sa a

Arml Torres

Ma Teresa Cruz

Emma Del Rosario

Rachel Atanaclo

Post Doctoral Fellow

Research Associate

Research AssoCIate

Research Associate

Programmer

Senior Research Assistant

Senior Research Assistant

Senior Research Assistant

Secretary

Secretary

F,shBase Artist

Cnstlna Ganlao Research Associate
GERMPLASM ENHANCEMENT AND BREEDING PROGRAM

AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS PROGRAM

Ambekar Eknath

Basd,o Rodnguez Jr

Belen Acosta

Marietta de Vera

Hernando Bolivar

Ravellna Velasco

Josephine France Rlus

Crnlo Federlgan Jr

Edna DionisIo

Manetta Hechanova

Fel,clslma Longalong

Antonio Taduan

Perla Vlrly

Mano Dantlng

Florian Lopez

Teresita Gonzales

Rogello Estrada

Dando Beltran

Camrlo Celestino

Joseph Cruz

Everl,to Dela Cruz

Mano Dela Cruz

Leonardo Dequlnat

BaldWin Reyes

Rolando Vdlanueva

Norberto Cabrera

John W McManus

Geronimo T Srlvestre

Ma Carmen A Ablan

Zoralda AloJado-

Program Leader/Senior SCientist

Project Manager

Research Associate

Research Associate

Senior Research Assistant

Senior Research Assistant

Programmer

Administrative Assistant

Research Assistant

Research Assistant

Research Asslsta nt

Research Assistant

Secretary

Accounting Clerk

Clerk Typist

Data Encoder

Field Assistant

Field Assistant

Field Assistant

Field Assistant

Field Assistant

Field Assistant

Field Assistant

Field Asslsta nt

Field Assistant

Dnver

Program Leader/Senior SCientist

Research SCientist

Research Associate

Research Associate

ICLARM



Miriam Balgos

Len R Garces

Sheila Vergara

Grace Coronado

Irene D Uy

Lambert Anthony Menez

Audrey Marie Banzon

John Marie Gacutan

Maharllna Gorospe

Kathleen K Reyes

Rowena Andrea Santos

Cindy Cabote

Benjamin ValleJo, Jr

Research AssoCIate

Research Associate

Research Associate

Senior Programmer

Senior Database Programmer

Senior Research Assistant

Research Assistant

Research ASSistant

Research Assistant

Research Assistant

Research Assistant

Secretary

Research Associate

FISHERIES RESOURCES ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

INTEGRATED AQUACULTURE AGRICULTURE SYSTEMS PROGRAM
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Fellmon C Gayando Jr

FrancIsco Torres Jr

Ma Rosandra Gayosd

Caribbean/France Office

John Munro

Denmark Office

Vdly Christensen

Mark Prern

Harold MacArthur Jr

Mary Ann Blmbao

Teresita Lopez

Roberto Oflclal

Emma LUisa Orencla

Farlyz FeliX Vdlanueva

Judith Foronda

Bangladesh

Satyendra Datt Trlpathl

De6ashlsh Mazumder

Khan Golam Rasul

Anwarul Islam

Programming Specialist

Senior Research Assistant

Research Assistant

Program Leader

Senior SCientist

Program Leader! Senior SCientist

Consultant

Research Associate

Senior Research Assistant

Research Assistant

Research ASSIStant

Research Assistant

Secretary

Senior Aquaculture Specialist

Research Associate

Accountant

Computer Programmer

-



BlJoy Bhusan Debnath

~bdur Razzak

Rowshon All

Kazi Shaflqur Rahman

Tapan Chandra Sarker

Mala~1I

Randall Brummett

Fredson Chlkafumbwa

Patience KananJi

Foster Makuwa

Yusef Fulaye

Issa Jaffarl

Allm MontJeza

Silas N sonthl

Secretary

Driver

Messenger

Messenger

Messenger

PrOject Director

Research AssoCIate

Project Assistant

Station Manager

Technical Assistant

Technical Assistant

TechnICal Assistant

Technical Assistant

COASTAL AQUACULTURE AND STOCK ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM
Solomon Islands

Johann Bell

Rayner Pitt

Stephen Battaglene

Idns Lane

CI.;tus Oengpepa

Kim Friedman

EVlzel Seymour

Kathy Launa

Alrlck Sese

Jane Battaglene

Charles Anita Fox

Stephanie Pallay

Timothy Foyle

Angela Grice

Ferra I Lasl

Vanessa Mattln

Christian Ramofafla

Hugo Tafea

Patrick Tllmy

Gedon Tlro6a

Joseph Boraule

Hendry Rota

Maxwell Saurongo

DICk Tavake

Moana Pelu

Be crly Tapu

John Sull

Benson Kalea

-

Program Leader

Manager

Aquaculture SCientist

ASSIStant Manager

Assistant Manager

Research AssoCIate

Research AssoCIate

Finance & Administrative Officer

Asst Administrative Officer

Marketing Officer

Marketing Officer

Information Officer

SCientific Assistant

SCientific Assistant

SCientific Assistant

SCientific Assistant

SCientific Assistant

Research Assistant

Research Assistant

Affiliate Research Assistant

PurchaSing Officer

PurchaSing Officer/Technical Aide

Senior Technical Aide

Senior Artisan

Secretary/TYPist

Receptlo~lst/TYPlst

Foreman

Foreman/Caretaker
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POLICY RESEARCH AND IMPACT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

Andrew Pell Foreman

Jerome Boraule Technical Aide

John Ta am Eke Technical Aide

Alfred Lau Technical Aide

Paul Mercy Technical Aide

Joseph Ollsla Technical Aide

Mason Tauku Technical Aide

Thomas Teltol Technical Aide

Tom Kavety Trainee Technical Aide

Emery Kelan Trainee Technical Aide

Rlbeka Manlsava VIsitor Service

Mary Naomi VIsitor Service

Timothy Llnl Labourer

George Lionel Labourer

Texley Meve Labourer

Solomon Saetl Labourer

Victor Simi Labourer

Jlmson Te esanau Labourer

Derek Kalea Carpenter

Beth Pechl Bae Cleaner/Gardener

Grace Dalel Cleaner/Gardener

Anna Mansuhuna Cleaner/Gardener

Medlyn Pell Cleaner/Gardener
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Mahfuzuddln Ahmed

Robert Pomeroy

Magnus Torell

Brenda Katon

Arlene Garces

Emmanuel Genlo Jr

Ingvdd Harkes

Ma Josella Mayordomo

Marlcel Gamo

AnJanette Trinidad Juan

Ma Lucia Tungala

Bangladesh

Paul Thompson

Gazi Nurul Islam

ManJur Kadlr

Delwar Hossain

Anwar Hossain

Program Leader

Senior Research SCientist

Secondment from SIDA

Consultant

Research AssoCIate

Research AssoCIate

AssoCIate Expert

Research Assistant

Programmer

Secretary

Secretary

SOCIal SCientist

Research Associate

Research AssoCIate

Secretary

Driver

-
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Program Leader

On Sabbatical

Secretary

INFORMATION AND TRAINING PROGRA

Joann K Ma ane P t kJ 0 a a
ay L Maclean

Mary Judy J VIzcarra

Translations 5ervlces Unit

Catherine Lh Bomme mudm

Publications 5L ervlces Unit
etlcla B Dizon

Marie Sol Sadorra

Alma Canuto

Ma Graclela BalleA ras
riel Aqulsap

Roberto Cada

AlbertContemprate

~Ian Slegfrid Esqudlon

odel Resurrecclon

ICLARM

Translator

INTERNATIONAL PARTNERSHIPS AND NETW

Mod.d", G,p" ORKS PROGRAM

Madan M D Program Le dey a er

Gaspar Blmb Project Coo dao r mator/So
Natalie M Research A cloeconomlst

acawariS ssoCiate

Lourdes Velasco Senior Research AMe'''''"'
aria Conce G onsultant

sa ayanrlo Secretary

Manager

ASSIStant Editor

Publications ATo sSlstant

ypesetter

Typesetter

Artist

Artist

Artist

Distribution Clerk

Library and I f
R

n ormation 5
osalmda ~ ervlces Unit

emprosa
Norma Jhocson Manager

Erlmda Go I Librarian
nza ez

Adellna Mend Associate Lib
M 0," L '''''"

a Isabel Ita Redulla Ibrary Assistant

Rosario Yabut Library Assistant

Reynaldo Dam I Library Asslsta t
a erlO nLibrary Aide
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ACIAR

ADB

AEP

AFS

AFSSRN

AIT

AKVAFORSK

ALCOM

APSF

BCMELP

BFAR

BGRP

BMZ

BRAC

BVI

CAC

CARICOM

CASEP

CEC

CFPO

CGIAR

CHC

CRED

CRIFI

CTA
CTU

DANIDA

DEGITA

DENR

DflD

DIFRES

DOF

EPOMEX

ESCAP

EU

EU STAB EX

FAC/CLSU

FAO

FCRI/HAKI

FRAMP

FSP

GBRMPA

GEBP

GIFT

GTZ

IAASP

lAB

Australian Centre for International Agricultural Research

ASian Development Bank

Aquatic EnVIronments Program

Amencan Fisheries Society

ASian Fisheries SOCial SCience Research Network

ASian Institute of Technology (Thailand)

Institute of Aquaculture Research of Norway

Aquaculture for Local Community Development

Australia and PaCIfic SCience Foundation

British Columba MinIStry of EnVIronment Lands and Parks

Bureau of FISheries and Aquatic Resources (PhiliPPines)

Biodiversity and Genetic Resources Program

BundesmlnlSterlum fur Wlrstchaftllche Zusammenarbelt

Bangladesh Rural Advancement Committee

British Virgin Islands

Coastal Aquaculture Centre (Solomon Islands)

Caribbean Community

Coastal Aquaculture and Stock Enhancement Program

CommISSion of the European CommUnities

Community Forestry Project OUlflno (Philippines)

Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research

Canadian High CommISSion

Centre for Resource and EnVIronment Development (Bangladesh)

Central Research Institute for FISheries IndoneSia

Technical Centre for Agricultural and Rural Cooperation

CanTho UniverSity (Vietnam)

DanISh International Development ASSIStance

DISsemination and Evaluation of Genetically Improved Tilapla In ASIa

Department of EnVIronment and Natural Resources (Philippines)

Department for International Development (formerly ODA) UK

DanISh Institute of Fisheries Research

Department of Fisheries

Program of Ecology Fisheries and Oceanography of the Gulf of MeXICO

Economlr and SOCial Commission for ASia and the PaCIfiC

Europea nUn Ion

European Union Program to Stabilize Export Earnings

Freshwater Aquaculture Center of the Central Luzon State UniverSity (Philippines)

Food and Agriculture Organization

FISh Culture Research Institute (Hungary)

FlShenes Resources Assessment and Management Program

FlShenes Sector Program

Great Barner Reef Marine Park AuthOrity

Germplasm Enhancement and Breeding Program

Genetic Improvement of Farmed Tilaplas

Deutsche Gesellschaft fur Technlsche Zusammenarbelt GmbH (German Agency

for Technical Cooperation)

Integrated Aquaculture Agriculture Systems Program

Institute of AquatiC Biology (recently renamed Water Resources Research Institute Ghana)
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IADB

IDRC

IFAD

IFM

IFPRI

IIRR

INGA

IPGRI

IPNP

IRRI

ITP

IUCN

JICA

MAG FAD

MINCOOP

MOU

MRAG

MRC

MTM

MTP

NARS

NFFTRC

NGO

NORAGRIC/NORAD

NSC

NTAS

NTFS

PCAMRD

PRIAP

RIMF

RVAU

SEAFDEC/AOD

SGRP

SEARCA

SIDA

SINGER

SLFSDP

UBC

UM

UNDP

UNEP

UPLB

UP MSI

UPV

USAID

USFRF

WCMC

ZIM

Inter American Development Bank

International Development Research Centre (Canada)

International Fund for Agricultural Development

Institute for FISheries Management and Coastal Community Development

International Food Policy Research Institute

International Institute for Rural Reconstruction

International Network on Genetics In Aquaculture

International Plant Genetic Resources Institute (Italy)

International Partnerships and Networks Program

International Rice Research Institute (PhiliPPines)

Information and Training Program

World Conservation Union

Japan International Cooperation Agency

MalawI German FISheries and Aquaculture Development Project

French MinIStry of Cooperation

Memorandum of Understanding

Marine Resources Assessment Group (London)

Mekong River CommISSion

Mid term Meeting

Medium term Plan

National aquatic (or agriculture) research systems

National Freshwater Fisheries Technology Research Center (Philippines)

Non government organization

Norwegian Center for International Agricultural Development

North Sea Centre (Denmark)

Network of Tropical AquaLulture SCientISts

Network of Tropical FISheries SCientISts

Phd'PPlne Councrl for Aquatic and Marine Research and Development

PoliCY Research and Impact Assessment Program

Research Institute for Marine FISheries (IndoneSia)

Royal Veterinary and Agricultural University (Denmark)

Southeast ASian Fisheries Development Center Aquaculture Department

System Wide Genetic Resources Program

Southeast ASian Regional Center for Graduate Study

and Research In Agriculture

Swedish International Development Cooperation Agency

Syskm Wide Information Network on Genetic Resources

Sri Lanka FISheries Sector Development Project

University of BritISh Columbra (Canada)

UnlverSlt, Malaya (MalaYSia)

United Nations De, elopment Programme

United Nations Envrronment Programme

UniverSity of the Phd,pp,nes at Los Banos

UniverSity of the Philippines Marine SCience Institute

Unl\erSity of the Philippines In the VlSayas

United States Aoencv for International Development

UnlvLfSIty of South FlOrida Research Foundation Inc

World Conservation MonitOring Centre

Zoological Institute and Zoological Museum (UniverSity of Hamburg)
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~us sommes heureux de vous presenter cette introduction et Ie bdan de I annee 1 996 Pour

mleux apprehender et refleter les demandes crolssantes a travers Ie monde d information et de technologle

pour alder a la geslion et I utdlsatlon judlcleuse des ressources aquatlques Vlvantes, I ICLARM s est

donnee une nouvelle structure d organlsalion et de programme au debut de I annee Croyant que Ie

contenu de notre programme de travad nest qu une partie de I equation, nous avons donc aussl

developpe une polltlque progresSiSte qUI expllque en detad comment nous voulons condulre notre

travad en association avec beaucoup d autres qUI partagent notre VISion

Les Ressouyces ACfuCltlCfues VlvClntes

Les questions se rapportant aux ressources aquatlques vlvantes speCialement celles concernant la

peche et I aquaculture demeurent fermement sur I agenda public TOUtefOIS, Ie theme de ce rapport

annuel est I attention de la presse Les deux domalnes pflnClpaux de I Interet public sont Ie noyau

peche aquaculture envlronnement et comment rendre I aquacullure plus nOUrrissante plus productive

et plus Juste dans la dlstflbutlon de ses blenfalts Dans ces preoccupations d y a la pflse de conscience

dune transition dans la contflbutlon de la peche a la securlte dune alimentation energetlque L1CLARM

a ete un element actlf dans I examen des Implications de cette transition Le pOisson autrefoIs source

bon marche de protelnes pour beaucoup de pauvres du monde a augmente en pflX reel, les reserves

mondlales de pOlssons font I objet de tres Importantes presslons aux niveaux actuels d exploitation, et

I aquacullure alors qu elle genere des gains Importants de production, tend a prodUire des profits

directs d abord pour des groupes aux revenus plus eleves a mOlns que des Inventions technologlques

speClflques ne pUissent assurer une plus grande equlte La pression grandlssante sur I enVlronnement,

en ce comprls I enVifonnement aquatlque limite de plus la capaclte productive des ressources naturelles

telles que I eau et la blodlverslte

Le Congres Mondlal de la Conservation de I Union pour la Conservation Mondlale (IUCN) a

tenu un atelier sur la peche et la conservation attlrant, pour la premiere fOls beaucoup de participants

des courants pflnClpaux de peche dans un dialogue sur les questions de la conservation, et cOlncldant

avec I inSCription controversee de certaines especes commerCiales de pOlssons sur les Llstes Rouges de

IIUCN L1UCN a inVite IICLARM a tenlr une session de travad sur la peche Cela annonce une

nouvelle phase majeure dans la gestlon de la peche et une utdlsatlon plus grande dune approche

prudente clans les decIsions de gestlon La polltlque et les reunions techniques de la Convention

Internatlcnale sur la Dlverslte BloIoglque comprenalent des ateliers sur les ressources naturelles et la

bJodlverslte aquatlque dont beaucoup ont ete SUIVIS et co organises par Ie personnel de I ICLARM

Un aquaculture nourrls,ante a retenu I attention des experts comme du public L1CLARM est

concerne par la fac;;on dont les gens pauvres peuvent partager les benfalts promls SOlt comme producteurs

SOlt comme consommateurs Nos Interventions de recherche ont pour objectlf des svstemes effJcaces

et ecologlquement vlables bases sur des ressources efflcaces donnant de veri tables moyens et dlsp0nlbles

pour les producteurs a petrte echelle (tels que aquaculture agriculture Integree e1evage de palourdes

geantes) et des prodults plus accesslbles (tels que des races amellorees de tdaplas) pour Ie

consommateur Dans tous les cas, Ie travad de I ICLARM se concentre sur des systemes respectueux

de I enVifonnement ces systemes qUI tendent'8 ne pas causer de problemes graves d envlronnement

ou qUI amellorent meme I envlronnement

-
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les Mel1leurs IntervenQnts

Dans la poursulte de la mission de IICLARM d amellorer Ie bien etre des populations pauvres

dans les pays en vOle de developpement nous sommes heureux de noter plusleurs realisations

remarquables du personnel de IICLARM personnel des eqUipes et partenalres de 1996 Ceux que

nous voudnons plus speCialement mettre en lumlere sont

Lequlpe qUI a prodUit FlshBase 96, la seconde mise a Jour sur CD ROM les Docteurs Rainer

Froese Daniel Pauly et tous ceux qUi ont travadle et contnbue a FlshBase au seln de IICLARM et

dans plus de 100 agences assoclees autour du monde Cette base de connalssances continue de

croltre en contenu et en dessrns et est en trarn de devenrr Ie repertoire pnnclpal mondlal de la

connalssance eXlstante sur les pOlssons Son utdlte devralt se developper en 1997 alors qu elle

devlent I element pnnclpal dune Initiative majeure de formation sur les ressources de la peche et la

blodlverslte aquatlque, dans les Pays d Afnque, des Caralbes et du PaCIfique qUI est soutenue

flnanclerement par I Unron Europeenne et mise en place a travers I ICLARM et ses partenalres

reglonaux

Une autre base de connalssance globale est notre seconde realisation remarquable Lequlpe

ReefBase dlngee par Ie Dr John McManus et reJolnte par beaucoup de collaborateurs Interesses par

les reclfs a prodult et realise Ie CD ROM ReefBase au Beme Symposium International Reclfs de

Corad a Panama en JUIn La base de donnees contlent deja une information sur plus de 6000 reclfs

et son contenu va se developper dans les quelques prochalnes annees a mesure qu une meilleure

couverture de I Information eXlstante sur Ie reclf sera achevee II est en trarn de devenrr une source

d rnformatlon cntlque pour les decldeurs concernes par la gestlon du reclf dont des millions de

personnes dependent

Les Docteurs Danrel Pauly et Purwlto Martosubroto (malntenant de la FAa, auparavant du

Dlrectorat General des Peches Mlnrstere de I Agnculture Indonesle) les edlteurs et les auteurs des

chapltres du livre Etudes de base en biodlverslte les ressources en pOisson de Iindonesle de

I Ouest ont prodult un travail sClentlfrque slgnrflcatlf mettant en valeur les caractenstlques des ressources

de peche de Iindonesle et en developpant de nouvelles perspectives sur la blodlverslte Issues des

donnees d un sondage reunres avant et apres Ie developpement de ces pechenes

Les Docteurs Robert Pomeroy, Richard Pollnac (Unrverslte de Rhode Island Etats Unls) et Ma

dame Brenda Katon ont examine les proJets de gestlon de la ressource cotlere sur une base communautalre

aux Phdlpplnes Cet examen donne des aper~us Importants des taux de succes de tels proJets et les

facteurs qUI etayent leurs progres C est un examen necessalre a mesure que Ie monde evolue vers des

actlvltes de type communautalres dans la gestlon des ressources naturelles

L ICLARM a fait connaltre sa polltlque de partenanat une premiere pour IICLARM et pour un

centre CGIAR Notre polltlque, sOlgneusement developpee par Ie Personnel et Ie Conset! tout au

long des deux dernreres annees etabllt les objectlfs les pnnClpes, el les strategies pour Ie partenanat

Le Dr Modadugu V Gupta Drrecteur des Relations Internatlonales etalt responsable de la condUite

des etapes finales de cette polltlque Importante

Completant son travad en aoOt, I equlpe de formation du Programme Secteur Peches a prodult

une sene de programmes de cours bases sur ces domalnes et des ensembles de matenels de formation

En etudlant un certain nombre de bales aux Phdlpplnes cette equlpe de speclallstes dlngee par

Geronimo Sdvestre et Len Garces a developpe et affrne les methodes qu ds ont eventuellement

Integrees dans les cours et matenels de formation
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Anthony Hart et Johann Bell du Centre d Aquaculture Catlere (CAC) de IICLARM ont

presente un article au deuxleme Congres Mond,al de la Peche a Bnsbane sur Ie reensemencement des

palourdes geantes dans Ie md,eu nature! Cet article proposalt qu un programme de reensemencement

ne SOlt viable que s II est fait avec un elevage de palourdes dans Ie vdlage Le protection des Jeunes

palourdes est possible seulement dans un developpement controle mals e!le est essentlelle pour la

survivance d un nombre suff,sant de specimens dans les premieres eta pes du reensemencement

LUnite des Publications de IICLARM a amel,ore I efhcaclte et la del,vrance de service Cette

Unite est en trarn de mettre en ordre un arrrere de publications et d etabllr un nouveau prolet de

systemes de gestlon

le Groupe Consultat,t sur la Recherche Agncole lnternatlOnale

Falsant partie du processus de reneuveau du CGIAR qUI a commence en 1994 et s est termrne

en 1996 nous avons vu I etabl,ssement de nouveaux comites assocles en 1996 Le Comlte du

Secteur Pnve et Ie Comlte des Organisations Non Gouvernementales (ONG) Les membres de ces

deux Comites ont vlslte IICLARM pour des discussions en 1996 Le Comlte des ONG a rencontre

un groupe de nos collaborateurs de ONG phll,pprnes pour en savelr plus au sUlet des associations

et proJets de recherches auxquels nous collaborons

Le CGIAR a aussl rntrodult une nouvelle formule de flnancement lors de la reunion de MI

Exercrce tenue a Jakarta en mal Cette formule a pour but d allouer la contnbutlon de la Banque

Mond,ale aux centres (approxlmatlvement 15% du frnancement total du CGIAR) en correlation

avec les fonds obtenus d autres donateurs ainSI qu a la constrtutlon de reserves pour la cas ou la

Banque rencontreralt de seneuses balsses de fonds au cours des quelques prochalnes annees Le

nouveau systeme met aussl a la charge des centres d estlmer leurs propres recettes comme base de la

contnbutlon de la Banque Cela necesslte plus de contacts directs avec tous les donateurs, dont

certarns ont notlfle anteneurement leur contnbutlons par Irntermedrarre de la Banque Mond,ale ou du

Comlte Frnancler du CGIAR

La Reunion de M, Exerclce du CGIAR eta It aussl un pornt de repere pour IICLARM, pUlsque

nous aVlons annonce apres avolr obtenu a cette hn Ie soutlen du CGIAR la deCISion du Consed

d accepter I offre du Gouvernement Egyptlen d utll,ser les rnstallatlons de recherches d Abbassa Le

Conser! a determrne que Ie site pourralt etre utr!lse pour deux fonclions pnnclpales d abord comme

un centre pour la recherche en collaboration de IICLARM et les actlvltes de formation dans la

region de I Afnque sub Sahanenne et dans la region I ASle de I Ouest/Afrique du Nord s attaquant

aux problemes de secunte de I alimentation de la poillique et des questions de ressources humalnes

a travers une recherche en collaboration avec des partenarres de la region, et aussl comme site pour

un systeme ecologlque selectlonne et une recherche globale en rapport avec des sUJets tels que la

d,vers,te brologlque, la gestlon de la ressource naturelle, la conservation genetlque, Ie contrale et

I amelioration/ la sante et I alimentation des especes aquatlques et les questions polltlques relatives

a la peche I aquaculture et les autres utdlsatlons de la ressource aquatlque

-



Durant I annee 1996 tous les centres CGIAR ont ete inVites a commencer a developper leurs

proJets a moyen terme (MTP) pour couvrrr la perrode 1998 2000 Pour IICLARM, c etalt notre

deuxleme MTP comme membre du CGIAR Nous avons commence par mettre tous ensemble sur

papler une discussion exposant les grandes Ilgnes de nos proJets Ce document a clrcule aupres de

plus de 400 deposltalres de proJets au mdleu de Iannee 1996 Nous avons re~u des reponses

eCrites detadlees d environ 120 personnes et organisations En septembre, un consed sClentlflque de

11 personnes s est reunl pendant trOIS Jours pour dlscuter ce document, des reponses, et pour

donner ses propres vues sur nos directions de recherches Le Comlte de Programme du Consed, et

ensUite Ie Consed en son entler ont dellbere sur ces rapports et gUide Ie personnel et I administration

en comprlant une ebauche finale de prOle! pour etre prrs en consideration par Ie CGIAR au debut

de I annee 1997

Pour IICLARM cette phase de preparation a fournl une opportunlte rdeale d organlser une large

consultation sur nos futurs programmes de recherche

L ICLARM va falre face a son prochaln Examen de Programme Externe et de Gestlon fin 1998/

debut 1999 En preparation de eet examen par Ie CGIAR nous avons continue notre programme

de reVISions externes commandees de fa«on Interne avec une reVISion complete de la DIvIsion Ser

vices Socletes en avrd 1996 Cette reVISion a fournl au Consed et a la Direction une assistance

appreCiable dans I amelioration de la dellvrance de services efflcaces effectlfs et bien orlentes vers

I obJectlf a attelndre

Le CGIAR a celebre son 2 5eme Annlversalre en 1996 avec une Journee speciale pendant la

Semalne des Centres Internatlonaux (ICW) a Washington en octobre Plusleurs fondateurs et an

Clens preSidents du CGIAR ont reJolnt la celebration Les centres ont presente leurs dernleres

decouvertes durant I ICW 1996 L ICLARM a fait sa presentation lors de la session reglonale pour

I ASle

RelatlOns avec les Donateurs

Beaucoup de donateurs gouvernementaux contlnuent de falre face aux contralntes flnancleres en

1996 en raison de ce que leurs gouvernements donnent mOlns de prrorrte a I assistance au

developpement a I etranger Cela a affecte leur capaclte a fournlr une assistance complementalre aux

centres CGIAR L ICLARM a malntenu un programme actlf de contact avec les donateurs et a

accuedll les vI,ltes de nombreux representants de donateurs Depuls que Ie Comlte de Consed

Technique a tenu sa reunion en mars dans notre Instltut aSSOCle, Iinstitut International pour la

Recherche sur Ie RIZ a Los Banos et en raison de la tenue de la ReUnion de MI Exerclce dans la

region ASle (Indonesle) IICLARM s est reJoUi des nombreuses Vlsltes de SUIVI des donateurs

L ICLARM a accuelill de nouveaux donateurs de pro)ets en 1996 quand I Agence Suedolse

Internatlonale de Developpement (SIDA) et la Fondatlon MacArthur des Etats Unls sont devenus

des soutlens finanCiers

- ICLARM
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Importance !undlCjue

En Janvier 1996 IICLARM a accueilll la participation de ~ Australle a notre Accord Interna

tlonal, slgne par les gouvernements des Philippines, du Danemark, de MalawI et du Vietnam en

1993

En octobre nous avons apprecle Ie vote par Ie Senat du Gouvernement des Philippines de la

DecIsion Senatonale N° 62 slgnalant I entree en vlgueur de I accord pnnclpal entre Ie Gouvernement

et IICLARM A la sUite de I adoption de cette deCISion IICLARM s est efforce d assurer tous les

arrangements formels necessalres a I etabllssement dune gamme d Immunltes et de pnvileges telle que

speclfle dans I accord principal Ces accords dOlvent etre completes au milieu de I annee 1997

GestlOn

Les depenses de fonctlonnement de I annee 1996 eta lent de 9,231 millions US$ en augmenta

tlon de 22% par rapport au budget final de 1995 Pour les revenus, les donateurs pnnClpaux onl

ete comptabillses pour 62% des revus totaux (5 762 millions US$), bien que 1,268 US$ de

ceux CI sOlent encore a recevolr a la fin de I annee 1996 Les fonds vlennent de 42 sources de

donateurs dont 14 etalent des donateurs prlnClpaux

En decembre 1996 IICLARM employalt 227 personnes comprenant 1 52 aux Philippines 51

au Centre d Aquaculture Catlere des lies Solomon, 8 a MalawI, 14 au Bangladesh et une en France

et au Danemark De ce personnel 27 personnes ont ete recrutees au plan international et les autres

ont ete recrutees localement ou reglonalement dans les sites dlfferents de IICLARM

U ne nouvelle structure organlsatlonnelle

En Janvier 1996 IICLARM a Introdult un nouveau programme et une nouvelle structure

organlsatlonnelle developpes a travers une consultation du personnel en 1995 et approuves par Ie

Conseil (voir dlagramme page 69) De nouvelles positions dlflgeantes ont ete creees, a savolr un

Dlrecteur General AdjOint aux Programmes un Dlrecteur des Relations Internatlonales et un

Admlnlstrateur charge des Relations Exteneures Ces positions, en plus de la nouvelle position de

Dlrecteur General AdJomt aux Services Socletes ont ete occupees en 1996 par

Dr Peter Gardiner Drrecteur General AdjOint (Programmes) auparavant de I Instltut Interna

tlonal de Recherche sur Ie Cheptel

Dr Modadugu V Gupta, Charge des Relations Internatlonales auparavant en charge du Centre

ICLARM du Bangladesh

Madame Susan Bonetto Dlrecteur AdjOint aux Services de Societe auparavant consultant en

gestlon des Etats Unls d Amenque et

Dr Maflan Fuchs Carsch (consultant) Chargee des Relations Extefleures auparavant de Iinstitut

International de Gestlon de I Irrigation

-



Une reunion de preparation du programme 5 est tenue en fevner pour apporter plus de preCISionS

a la structure du programme Le developpement ulteneur de ces nouveaux programmes et des liens

entre eux a ete continue tout au long de Iannee et dOlt se continuer avec Ie nouveau proJet a Moyen

Terme

Recherche d un lieu pour Ie siege central

Durant I annee 1996 IICLARM a poursuivi des negoclatlons avec I Autonte de la Metropole

de Sub,c Bay (SBMA) pour un lieu adequat pour son siege a Subc Bay a 120 krlometres a I Ouest

de Manrlle Vers Ie mrl,eu de I annee, la perspective etalt prometteuse Une equlpe de consultants

du Danemark, du Royaume Unl et de la FAO, a entreprrs une miSSion Inltlale de conception du

proJet avec des fonds genereusement fournls par DANIDA Lequlpe a Vlslte LlCLARM, entreprrs

une defmltlon des besoms et ensulte Inspecte un site potentlel a Sublc Bay Le Consell d Administration

a rencontre et tenu des discussions avec Ie President du SBMA en septembre a Sublc Bay

En deplt de cette preparation, aucun accord deflnltlf n a pu etre conclu a la fin de I annee Une

localisation appropnee du siege contmue d etre I un des plus grands besoms de IICLARM

SItes ExteYloYlses

LlCLARM avec Ie soutlen du CGIAR, a decide d accepter I offre du Gouvernement Egyptlen

d utrllser les installations d Abbassa Les negoclatlons sur I accord avec Ie pays d accued sont arrrvees

a une conclUSion a la fin de I annee Par anticipation de cette Issue favorable, une preparation du

reequlpememt de I Installation a commence au mrlleu de I annee 1996 Elle etalt dlngee par M

Tony Pickett un consultant agncole australien ayant une expenence conSiderable des pro)ets de

developpement en Egypte

Du personnel International de haut nlveau a ete recrute pour les POSitions de Dllecleur General

AdjOint pour I Afrrque et I ASle de I Ouest de Gestlonnalre de I Installation et de SClentlflque

Prrnclpal Tous ces personnels devralent prendre leurs fonctlons au debut de 1997

Les lies Solomon

En 1996 Ie Centre d Aquaculture Cotlere d commence une nouvelle recherche sur I elevage des

concombres des mers troplcales avec des fonds du Centre Australien pour la Recherche Agncole

Internatlonale (ACIAR) et a consacre son Infrastructure de base a recevolr un nouveau prolet et une

nouvelle equlpe Le CAC a aussl accuerlll en son site un prolet d elevage des escargots verts de

I Agence Japonalse de Cooperation Internatlonale (JICA)

- ICLARM



Bangladesh

Le travail a contmue sur I aquaculture a petite echelle dans les systemes d e1evage avec des fonds

de I Agence Amencalne pour Ie Developpement International (USAID) Des etudes en co gestlon

des orgamsmes dans les eaux mteneures est entree dans une nouvelle phase avec Ie soutlen fmancler de

la Fondatlon Ford Ces deux proJets ont ,mpl,que de nombreux partenalres natlonaux parmi les ONG

et les agences gouvernementales engagees dans la recherche la gestlon et les services annexes

La recherche sur I aquaculture agnculture Integree a petite echelle a contmue a MalawI L1CLARM

a slgne un nouvel accord d accued de cmq ans avec Ie Gouvernement de MalawI Des discussions se

sont tenues avec les off,c,els gouvernementaux sur Ie developpement possible de I actlvlte de IICLARM

a MalawI pour mclure des etudes sur la co gestlon des peches sur les pechenes des grands lacs

En 1996 IICLARM a commence deux pro)ets aux Caraibes tous deux etud,ant I Impact des

zones de mer protegees Lun est conduit avec I Unlverslte des Indes Onentales en Jamalque et

finance par la Banque de Developpement Inter Amencame Lautre est conduit dans les lies V,erges

Bntannlques en association avec Ie Departement des Ressources Naturelles et fmance par Ie Departement

pour Ie Developpement International du Royaume Unl Les deux pro)ets sont d,nges par Ie Dr John

Munro

AdmmlstratlOn

Le Consed d Admmlstratlon a tenu deux reunions fructueuses du Consed et supervise un ensemble

de comites d acompagnement Le Consed a contmue de sUlvre de tres pres la croissance de IICLARM

et de mamtenlr des liens etrolts avec les actlvltes nouvelles du CGIAR II a eu en vue egalement

d evaluer ses propres progres et procedures De nouveaux membres ont ete Introdults dans les procedures

du Consed et du CGIAR Des efforts ont ete faits lors de chaque reunion pour fourmr des opportumtes

pour les membres du Consed de falre connalssance avec Ie personnel de IICLARM

Fmalement, nous voudnons attlrer votre attention sur la couverture med,atlque et les pomts culmmants

de recherche mls en lumlere dans ce rapport Ceux CI ont ete selectlonnes pour donner un Idee du

mdleu dans lequeilCLARM opere et pour falre passer quelque chose du besom urgent des prodults

du travad de I ICLARM
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John L Ddlon

President du Consed

Meryl J Wdhams

Dlrectnce Generale
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